Tian Teck Land Limited
KREHEFRA

| SQUARE

Stock Code B35 : 266

ANNUAL REPORT £ 3f



RFER P XGERRPLRE - MBEAFHE - HURSURAZE -
The translation into Chinese language of this annual report is for reference only.
In case of any inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.



H# Contents

NEEH
EIFEREE
MIRBE
REERWE
EEEHEE

ERHEEEEAS
BAGE

B BE RS

FeRBEK

FEZEBHER
EESEXR

FEERZEHER
FEBHSRER
B R AR I RE
FFMBHE

Corporate Information
Chairman’s Statement
Properties

Corporate Governance Report

Report of the Directors

Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income

Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Notes to the Financial Statements

Five Year Financial Summary




DNEEHR

Corporate Information

e
HITES
SEIEIR ()
EBN(EIELE)
sEmE

$BIEIR

FHUTES
YRR

BIEHITES
SEs:
%hE%
Bl p

R1T

{84 ST AR A )
BB

H5 DRELRTERAT
RIS RITAR A )

FREm
FFHITRE(
NG ]

O 2T
BEEABELH

R EIEm
L AL

REZRTE

BEBPREFLEELERAT
BB BT 2R ANER183%
AP LITEIT12-1716E

ERRIIE ==Y
HBNELLPHE
FBCE63RER EHoE

A uh

http://ttll.etnet.com.hk

Tian Teck Land Limited X &#EH R 2 7

Board of Directors
Executive Directors

Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)
Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Cheong Keng Hooi

Cheong Sim Lam

Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Director
Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul

Yau Allen Lee-nam

Tse Pang Yuen

Company Secretary
Ng Sau Fong

Bankers

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Solicitors
Mayer Brown JSM
C.P. Lin & Co.
Deacons

Stephenson Harwood

Auditor
KPMG

Share Registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Registered Office
9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Website
http://ttll.etnet.com.hk



ITRBES

Chairman’s Statement

NS ES
RAMAEMAEBRHBEE_ZT—HF=A
ST ALFEZEBERES RAFE -
REEZREVEGEEHNNEEEFA
75 508,300,000 7T * B E—HMEEE EFHL
15.7% - ZEAEEREABRESHN AT RFEEZ
TASWAR = —BEFEIEATE -

HEZZT—NF-_A=T—HILUHBFE  &E&
Y E M E AT B #999,900,0007T © & £ —BH
FETBRLE1,424,800,0007T ° ZEEZREFIR
EYENEREEH EARFSEE  mTgY
HESREERTLE -

AEBZEERRELEENREBE

730,100,000 7T * M £ — B8 B F E Bl BB &
1,425,700,0007T °

EBERE M HESZ

ﬁ%ﬁﬁa—mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁmﬁﬁ%%
MEENGFaEMETL BE_T-—HNFE=A
=t+—HIEMEREE - mﬁ%mﬁéWAﬁ

#E 7B #603,100,0007T © 8 F—BBFE EFAL
16.8% c W_ZT—WF=ZA=+—H ' BERES

HHEERA100% R-E—=F=A=+—H0E|
#)/97.8% °
RAFE  REBREME  BEUREEAL

BIERLZEPORERMLAPEEMN—FEK
EZHEG—E  BE/AKEHRESHA

Financial Results

| am pleased to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2014. During the year, the Group achieved a profit from operations
before valuation changes in investment properties of HK$508.3 million,
representing an increase of approximately 15.7% compared with the
previous financial year. The increase was mainly due to increase of rental

income from iISQUARE compared to the previous financial year.

Valuation gains on investment properties for the financial year ended
31 March 2014 amounted to HK$999.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$1,424.8 million compared with the previous financial year.
The valuation gains will only affect the accounting profit or loss but not the

cash flow of the Group.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to equity shareholders of
HK$730.1 million, compared with a profit attributable to equity shareholders

of HK$1,425.7 million for the previous financial year.

Business Review and Commentary on Financial
Results

iISQUARE is a commercial complex housing retail, entertainment, food
and beverage establishments. Rental income from iISQUARE amounted
to approximately HK$603.1 million for the financial year ended 31 March
2014, representing an increase of approximately 16.8% compared with the
previous financial year. The occupancy rate at 31 March 2014 was 100%

compared with approximately 97.8% at 31 March 2013.

The Group’s investment properties comprising four floors of Goodluck
Industrial Centre in Lai Chi Kok and one floor of a commercial building in
Guangzhou in the People’s Republic of China, continued to generate rental

income during the year.
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Capital Structure and Liquidity
The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2014 was HK$13,810.3 million,
compared with HK$12,784.2 million at 31 March 2013.

Associated International Hotels Limited (“AIHL”), a 50.01% owned
subsidiary, repaid HK$200 million in October 2013 for the remaining balance
of the bank loan granted by the facility agreement entered on 20 October
2006. On 7 October 2013, AIHL entered into a new facility agreement with
a bank comprising of a 3-year term loan facility of up to HK$200 million and
a 3-year revolving loan facility of up to HK$100 million. At 31 March 2014,
the banking facilities were utilised to the extent of HK$200 million and the

Group’s gearing ratio was 1.4% (calculated as total bank loans over total

equity).

Business Model and Strategies
The Group’s business is property investment in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China. The Group generates and preserves its value through

being an investor in those property markets.

To accomplish this, the Group strives to nurture growth from its existing
properties through prudent management. Whilst the Group generally
maintains a prudent and conservative approach towards property
investment, it also seeks to exploit opportunities for future development. With
the aim of securing stable and recurring returns, the Group has adopted
very stringent investment criteria and targets only high quality projects and

investments.

The Group recognises the importance of sound financial strength to support
sustainable growth and future development and hence, its fundamental
strategy is to maintain a solid balance sheet with strong cash flow and a low

gearing ratio.
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Outlook

Considering retail business could be affected by external economic
environment, volume of visitor arrival and their spending habits, management
will carefully evaluate their impact on iISQUARE. The Group will adopt
appropriate leasing strategies for securing suitable tenants to enhance the
leasing performance of iISQUARE. Barring unforeseen circumstances, it is
anticipated that rental income from iISQUARE and the results from operations

of the Group will continue to be satisfactory for the coming financial year.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of shareholders of the Company will be held on
Wednesday, 3 September 2014. For the purpose of determining the identity
of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 1 September 2014 to Wednesday, 3 September 2014, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.
All transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on
Friday, 29 August 2014.

Dividend

The Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.23 per
share for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$0.21 per share). As
the Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.21 per share during the
year (2013: HK$0.17 per share), the total distribution will be HK$0.44 per
share for the year (2013: HK$0.38 per share). Subject to the shareholders’
approval on the proposed final dividend at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed
for the purpose of determining entitlement to the said final dividend from
Wednesday, 10 September 2014 to Friday, 12 September 2014, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.
All transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on
Monday, 8 September 2014. The proposed final dividend will be paid on
Monday, 29 September 2014 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members on Friday, 12 September 2014 following approval at the

Annual General Meeting.
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E Cheong Hooi Hong

EEE Chairman
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iISQUARE

iISQUARE is located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui at the intersection of
Nathan Road and Peking Road. It is the first one-stop shopping and
entertainment complex linked to Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station. This complex
provides 56,000 square metres of space comprising a shopping podium,

cinema box and tower.

The podium is a vibrant new hub for world-class fashion and lifestyle brands,
complemented by five grand cineplexes, including a 448-seat digital IMAX
theatre. ISQUARE also features fine-dining restaurants and lifestyle services

in its iconic tower.

Goodluck Industrial Centre
Four floors of Goodluck Industrial Centre belong to the Company. There
are automobile showrooms, vehicle workshops, carparking spaces and a

petrol-filling station. The Centre is located in Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises its responsibilities to shareholders and is therefore
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. To
accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices and procedure,

and identified and formalised appropriate measures and policies.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Company complied
with all the code provisions, where applicable, set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing

Rules”), except for the deviations as disclosed hereunder:

Code Provision A.1.8: Appropriate insurance cover

in respect of legal action against directors should be
arranged

Currently, the Company does not have insurance cover for legal action
against its Directors. The Board believes that with the current internal control
system and the close supervision of the management, the Directors’ risk of
being sued or getting involved in litigation in their capacity as Directors of the
Company is relatively low. Nevertheless, the Board will review the need for

insurance cover from time to time.

Code Provision A.2.1: The roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and performed by two
individuals

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive of the
Company. The Board of Directors considers that the current structure
does not have any adverse effect on the Company and believes that this
structure enables the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and

efficiently.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Code Provision B.1.5: Remuneration details of senior
management should be disclosed by band in annual
reports

The remuneration details of the senior management are not disclosed
by band in the annual report. The Board of Directors notes that none
of the senior management members is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration or related to the remuneration committee members (who
are authorised to collectively determine the remuneration of the senior
management). Also, the disclosure of such information may cause undue
comparison and discontent among staff members, and would unnecessarily
provide highly sensitive and confidential information to competitors and other
third parties looking to recruit the senior management. In light of the above,
the Directors are of the view that the disclosure of such information would
neither provide pertinent information in furtherance of corporate governance,

nor be in the interests of the shareholders.

Code Provision F.1.3: The company secretary
should report to the board chairman and/or the
chief executive

Instead of reporting to the Chairman (who is also the chief executive of the
Company), the company secretary reports directly to the deputy chairman.
The Board considers that this reporting line does not prevent the Chairman/
chief executive from understanding/managing the operation of the Company
or discharging his duties, for the Chairman and deputy chairman have
ongoing discussion on business affairs, in particular corporate governance

and financial issues.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its code for dealing in securities in the Company by its Directors (“Model
Code”). Specific enquiry has been made of all Directors of the Company
as to whether they have complied with or whether there has been any
non-compliance with the Model Code, and all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

financial year ended 31 March 2014.

Annual Report 2013-2014 3§




HEERFE Corporate Governance Report

o
KRE-F—MEZ A=+ —AMBFE - &
AREFE i THIEFAN

HITEE
RIS (L)
EIBMEE(FIEE)
s
=N

FEHITEE
SRR AE

BUIBITEE
AEEss
B
il s

BIEERSEE(ARBZEFEMITRAER) - BEMK
BRE/MAREEBMEENLT  TREEE
At EMELRENERBALENELR - FNER
RGP BB R KRR A LB AIN TS o

REBOEEGRE EFSAAFRMAKEZE
ERMEERAE - & %@E REMERAE

BREGIFTER - AR REHKE - XE
%‘$%@Eﬁ%&§@ﬁﬁ DEERMARREE o

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X &#EH R 2 7

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors during the financial year ended 31 March 2014

comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Director

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam

Mr Tse Pang Yuen

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive
of the Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter
of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the Directors who are

members of the Cheong family own businesses outside the Group together.

Under the corporate governance structure, the Board of Directors is as
a whole accountable to its shareholders in the Group’s performance.
It is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group, which
include formulation of objectives, overall strategies and business plans;
and overseeing the financial and management performance, corporate

governance and internal control of the Group.



PEERFE Corporate Governance Report

BEE2 )

BEFEINETHE FEERRU=-EZE
& HRAERESE FHESENELES
& - FRTEFEAMEMACRR LT ALE
SRR EmER L NS EERE THES
- ABHEESNEHBETLAS SE8E
VB —HEERRE - AEREMREIERIE
2l S EBSNBERETE EAMBLS AN
BEABE  ZSEESARYNEESER
R EEE R AR TR BEESR -

AELETANE EESRBETEEREAS
EEKHATEEE  SREAMTESSDHET
MEE KRS TRESFSTCHER - =
EeEEEEEREBN I MERENAES
SEENAEEZREEODATDHZIE - &N
EXeHEEEMNETAERE  AARERE
RET UTHUEEFAFAINESENRE  #h
FNERAE

BRENREERETEEEE TNZEGNER
ETetehEEguASEENBRBET -&
FEEMAREDARAKREZEENEER L
RICEME -

ARAREEAHFEUEMBHROMBRERE
B BEZERRABERQ T RRAEENH
BRAREEMRSRE - MRHECEEER
HAKEEBEE_T-NF=A=+—"HLEMBEF
EHMEHERE - ERCRNEENSHAEE (R
N E D e NN A= DN b
KERTESN) » WEAE E—MBEEMFRES
PR BRI & SRR K B 1B & B2 /0 HI i A
At e

ARRESREHRE S ENRE - LA ERERE
MRRAEERNEMSHNOPBRRNEE - AR
FAZ AN B A R BB TS R (E L B R B (2 B
FIEN B 46 B E HATH ML R B RE N

Board of Directors (continued)

With the objective of focusing more attentively on specific areas, the
Board has established three committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee. Non-executive
Directors are invited to serve on these Board committees according to the
benefits brought by their participation in view of their individual experience
and skills. To assist the committees in discharging their roles adequately,
each committee is provided with a committee policy, setting out guidelines
for its members to follow in decision-making. Duties and authorities of the
committees are also set out in their respective terms of reference. To keep
the Board fully informed of their works and findings, these committees are

required to report to the Board on a regular basis.

For the purpose of efficient operation, the Board relies on the management
for the day-to-day operation of the Group’s business. The management has
to implement the objectives, strategies and plans adopted by the Board
and report to the Board regularly. The Board monitors the work of the
management whilst the management provides an indispensable support to
the Board operation and Group’s development. Given the close collaboration
between the Board and the management, the duties, power and functions of

the Board and the management are clearly laid down and defined in writing.

Delegating its functions and authorities to the Board committees and the
management does not absolve the Board from its overall responsibility for
the governance of the Group. The Board at all times assumes the ultimate

responsibility for the Group’s management and operation.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows of the Group.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 March 2014 on a going concern basis, the Directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies and, other than the new and revised accounting
policies which are first effective for the year under review as disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements, applied them consistently with
those applied to the financial statements of the previous financial year. The

Directors have also made judgements and estimates which are reasonable.

The Directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records
which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group. The statement of the Auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 46 to 47.
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Board of Directors (continued)
Six board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, and one
general meeting were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

Individual attendance of the Directors is set out below:

HEEBAY FERHEERRY
Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

Exgel BRAE

Directors Board Meetings General Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
EEELE(EE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 6/6 1/1
SEIBMITE(FIF/E) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 6/6 1/1
EimE & Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 4/6 1/1
fzedeabite Mr Cheong Sim Lam 6/6 1/1
SEIRIS/MA Miss Cheong Chong Ling 6/6 1/1
FEPITEE Non-executive Director
piilitp e Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 6/6 1/1
BB TTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
EESi=Ptas Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 6/6 1/1
PhEBEhA Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 6/6 1/1
TR L Mr Tse Pang Yuen 6/6 1/1

REEERERITEACHUFTOMBMEEE -
ARBEBEEE - RAFE - RRBIREM
BESRHTERTE BE - WEREHEE
ERNERNEERTLNAE - AEBTERRNA
RIEZEEENERBLIANKNER - 2
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@ﬂﬁé%ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁié%ﬂ%&aﬂa&*ﬁﬁﬁzW-‘u‘Biﬁ
FIRE - AR BEEAEINBIEERH
AREBBES T2 HAR AN IZIEEE -
g  WEMNNRE  EFTAANRARERNIE
AT ARRENAERBER
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To enable the Directors to maintain the necessary knowledge and skills to
perform their roles, the Company places an emphasis on Directors’ training.
During the year under review, all Directors were furnished with quarterly
memoranda/circulars so as to regularly refresh their knowledge relating to
legal and regulatory obligations. To keep the Directors abreast of the latest
developments regarding regulatory and legal requirements, the company
secretary also provided updates to the Board as and when necessary.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Company organised in-
house training courses in relation to Directors’ duties and responsibilities
for the Directors and reviewed the adequacy of training received by them.
The Directors are encouraged to attend relevant external training sessions,
seminars, forums and conferences on their own with all related expenses

reimbursable by the Company, subject to the Company’s policy.
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A0} Board of Directors (continued)
REZ-_ZT-—NF=A=+—HIHBEFEE ' & Training received by the Directors during the financial year ended 31 March
EERRIFIZEENT 2014 is set out below:
HERRE RATWEN, R
g HBTHAS
BE = FEER BT R
Receiving
Attending briefings
courses/ from company
seminars/ Reading secretary and/or
Directors conferences materials other executives
HITEE Executive Directors
BRI (EE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) N \
SEEMEE(SIEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) N N
SR A Mr Cheong Keng Hooi N \
B R A Mr Cheong Sim Lam N J
BRI/ A Miss Cheong Chong Ling N J
FHITEE Non-executive Director
piilip e Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles Vv J
B HHTTESE Independent Non-executive Directors
AEREE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul N J
HhEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam Vv J
il pavivias Mr Tse Pang Yuen N N
o BRATRR MBI E) TR - QDI RIR B Note: The above-mentioned training is relevant to (1) corporate governance, (2) rules
PEEHEMNETERS - and regulations and (3) Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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Non-executive Director and

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Director is appointed for a term of one year whilst
Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for the period
commencing from the conclusion of one annual general meeting to the
conclusion of the following annual general meeting. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, they are required to retire by rotation, but

remain eligible for re-election, at least once every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each Independent Non-
executive Director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent. One of the
Independent Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as

required under the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee and the audit committee, each
with its written terms of reference. Each committee is required to report
back to the Board and keep the Board fully informed of its decisions and
recommendations unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on its

ability to do so.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain
Directors and staff of suitable calibre by remunerating them at a competitive
level. In order to achieve this, the Board has established a remuneration
committee. Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no Director or his/her
associates are allowed to be involved in decisions relating to his/her own

remuneration.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The remuneration committee currently comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors and one Non-executive Director. They are
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles,
Mr Tse Pang Yuen and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam. The main duties of the
remuneration committee are to review and make recommendations to the
Board on the terms of reference of the committee; to assist the Company
in formulating remuneration policy and structure for Directors and senior
management; to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals; to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management; to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Directors; to consider salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; to review and approve
compensation payable to Executive Directors and senior management for
any loss or termination of office or appointment; and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors
for misconduct. Details of the remuneration committee’s authority and
duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference are
published on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (the “HKEX”") and are also available upon written request to

the company secretary.

Remuneration of individual Executive Directors and senior management is
determined, with delegated responsibility, by the remuneration committee on
the recommendations of the chief executive (except Mr Cheong Hooi Hong
whose remuneration package is determined by the remuneration committee
alone) on an annual basis. The remuneration committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the review of remuneration of Non-
executive Director and Independent Non-executive Directors annually. For all
other staff, it is the Executive Directors who fix their remuneration packages
on the recommendations of their respective department heads on an annual

basis.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The amount of remuneration payable to the Directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the Directors. When determining the remuneration
packages of senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and Executive Directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market conditions, the Group’s resullts,

individual performance, job nature and duties.

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 27 to the financial
statements on page 121, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the remuneration committee
held three meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s remuneration policy and the terms of reference of the
committee; considered and fixed the remuneration packages of Executive
Directors and senior management and made recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of both the Non-executive Director and Independent

Non-executive Directors.

The attendance record of each remuneration committee member is set out

below:

HESBRB FERHEERRE

Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
AEEEE(ZE2EE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 3/3
AR o Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 3/3
PEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
il eyt Mr Tse Pang Yuen 3/3
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee currently comprises two Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The members are
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (committee chairman), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim,

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam and Mr Tse Pang Yuen.

The main duties of the nomination committee are to review and provide
recommendations to the Board on the nomination policy, terms of reference
of the committee and the Board diversity policy; to review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to assess the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors; to assess the mix
in terms of gender, age and qualifications required on the Board; to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive; and on the
need of setting measurable objectives for implementing the Board diversity
policy. Details of the nomination committee’s authority and duties are set out
in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference are published on the
websites of the Company and the HKEx and are also available upon written

request to the company secretary.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the nomination committee
held three meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on the nomination policy, the terms of reference of the committee, the Board
diversity policy, the need of setting measurable objectives for implementing
the Board diversity policy and the necessary mix required on the Board;
made recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and composition
of the Board; assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors; and made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointments
of the Independent Non-executive Directors, Non-executive Director and

Directors who were subject to retirement by rotation.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

On making recommendations to the Board for re-appointment of a
Director, the nomination committee needs to consider not only the skills
and experience of the Director concerned, but also his/her value to the
Company, so as to ensure that there is a balanced composition of the
Board. Board diversity is a key consideration in Board selection process. For
the Company, it is more than an issue of gender, it also focuses on age and
professional experience. Selection of female candidates or candidates of a
particular age group or qualifications to join the Board is, in part, dependent
on the pool of candidates possessing necessary skills, knowledge and
experience. Board appointment is mainly based on merit and contribution
likely brought by the chosen candidates. The Company believes that, with
the benefits of diversity, it can have a better understanding to the needs and

expectations of its stakeholders, in particular shoppers and tenants.

To reflect the above, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy, in
which the nomination committee is required to assess the mix in terms of
gender, age and qualifications required on the Board; and to recommend to
the Board any matters in relation to Board diversity or implementation of the

policy.

Although the Board supports the principle of diversity, it currently does not
intend to fix a diversity quota for Board appointment or set a short term
objective on gender diversity, for such policies may compromise on the

calibre of Directors.

The process for re-election of a Director is set out in the Company’s Articles
of Association, which requires that (i) every Director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and a retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election; and (i) Directors who are appointed by the
Board as an addition to the Board shall retire at the next annual general
meeting whilst those appointed to fill casual vacancies shall retire at the next
general meeting (instead of the next annual general meeting) and Directors

S0 appointed are eligible for re-election.
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Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
The attendance record of each nomination committee member is set out

below:

HEEBAE FERHEERLRE

Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

ERESLE(ZEETE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (committee chairman) 2/3

fEIEMEAE Mr Cheong Kheng Lim 3/3

AEgEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 3/3

hEBhA Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3

il eyt Mr Tse Pang Yuen 3/3
BREES Audit Committee
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BENR BB RERAMNEE « s RERING
TZEED ) IB SN R R B A AL BUR P A RRK
B TERGAT - BN RBEIR RIS
REBMBHRET : BIRT RMITHINEZ BN IR
HIFZBRGNIEABCR + B M H R RHE R
NEEEEF  BERAKENMBEER I
AR BTHERENERTHRAEFEZTETS
REBINZEE - WHERD BIEEE R HEAE
HRAFIBINRAENRET  BEERAR
AEINEREMBARZ TEREK MR Z8e
MBEHE  YAEESFHEE - ERLEY
MBESECHAMAERENERE Y EH
RARB R B - IR AZE TR A
NAMERI -
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The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are
to make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor; to approve remuneration, terms of
engagement and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal in
respect of the external auditor; to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of its audit process; to
discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of audit and reporting
obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and implement
policy on engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services;
to oversee financial reporting system and internal control procedures;
to review financial information of the Group; to review arrangements
employees of the Company can use in confidence to raise concerns about
possible improprieties and ensure proper arrangements are in place for
fair and independent investigation and for follow-up action; to act as the
key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with its
external auditor; and to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the terms of reference of the committee. Details of the audit committee’s
authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of
reference are published on the websites of the Company and the HKEx and

are also available upon written request to the company secretary.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The audit committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and the one Non-executive Director. The members are
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles,

Mr Tse Pang Yuen and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the audit committee met
three times and made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of the external auditor, considered and approved the terms of engagement
of the external auditor; reviewed the half-year and annual financial
statements of the Group, including integrity and significant financial reporting
judgements contained therein, before submission to the Board for approval;
discussed with the external auditor the nature and scope of the audit before
commencement; met the external auditor without the presence of executive
board members of the Company; reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system; and considered and made recommendations to
the Board on the arrangements for employees to raise concerns about

improprieties, the audit policy and the terms of reference of the committee.

The audit committee also agreed with the external auditor on the scope
and extent of the interim review before commencement and ensured the
Company’s compliance with its policy on engagement of the external auditor

to supply non-audit services to the Group.

The attendance record of each audit committee member is set out below:

HEEBRE FERHEERLRE

Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
ARBRE(ZEEFE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 3/3
BAERE kA Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 3/3
hEHAEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
HMS T L Mr Tse Pang Yuen 3/3
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Directors

Board Committees (continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

Given the importance of good corporate governance to the success of
the Company, the Board is directly responsible for performing corporate
governance duties. The duties set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the

CG Code are included in its terms of reference.

Among the six board meetings held during the financial year ended
31 March 2014, two of the meetings covered issues relating to corporate
governance. At the meetings, the Board reviewed the general code of
conduct for employees and Directors; monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; considered
and monitored corporate governance policies and practices with particular
regard to the compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in

the corporate governance report.

Individual attendance of the Directors at the said two board meetings is set

out below:

HESHEAE  FEREFEERRE

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HITEE Executive Directors

SEBIES A (EE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/2
BB E(EILE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 2/2
SEIMIESCAE Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 1/2
fopryealivley Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
BRI/ A Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2
FHITEE Non-executive Director

piilip e Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
B HHTTESE Independent Non-executive Directors

EE=Y e Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2
hEBEhA Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
il eyt Mr Tse Pang Yuen 2/2
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Auditor of the Company,
KPMG, provided audit services of a value of approximately HK$1,103,000
to the Group. KPMG also provided non-audit services of a value of
approximately HK$434,000 to the Group, which included HK$116,000
and HK$313,000 being charges for tax services and the interim review

respectively.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system
and reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures and systems are in place to
safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition; to maintain proper
accounting records and to ensure accuracy of financial information and
compliance with applicable statutes, rules and regulations. Defined roles,
responsibilities and reporting lines have been established. However, these
procedures and systems are designed to minimise and mitigate the risk of
failure in operation and achievement of the Company’s objectives and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against errors, losses or

fraud.

The Board, with the assistance of the audit committee of the Company,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group during the financial year ended 31 March 2014. The review
covered all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and risk management functions. The Board considers that the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function are
adequate. The Board is not aware of any significant areas of concern which

should be brought to the attention of the shareholders.
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Shareholders’ Relations

To enhance its accountability and promote transparency, the Company is

committed to maintaining channels for communication with its shareholders.

Providing information

Corporate communications are prepared in both English and Chinese
versions and in plain language so as to make the documents understandable.
Such documents are despatched to shareholders and released to the public

domain in a timely manner.

Information released by the Company to the HKEx is posted on the

Company’s website (http://ttll.etnet.com.hk/ca-calendar-e.html) thereafter.

The Articles of Association of the Company which spell out shareholders’
rights can be found on the websites of the Company and the HKEx. During
the financial year ended 31 March 2014, other than those changes arising
automatically as a result of certain deeming provisions contained in the
new Companies Ordinance which came into effect on 3 March 2014, there
have been no changes made to the Articles of Association of the Company.
However, following the implementation of the new Companies Ordinance,
the Directors propose to seek approval of the shareholders at the annual
general meeting to be held on 3 September 2014 for the adoption of the
new Articles of Association of the Company to, among other things, bring the
constitution of the Company in line with provisions of the new Companies

Ordinance.

The proposed amendments to the existing Articles of Association of the
Company are set out in full in Appendix IV to the circular dated 24 July 2014

which is despatched to shareholders together with this annual report.

Shareholders may at any time make a written request to the company
secretary for the Company’s information to the extent that such information is

publicly available.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Encouraging participation/interaction

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a forum for face-to-
face communication between shareholders and the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend, speak and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are
unable to attend. Board members, in particular, the Chairman of the Board
and chairmen of the Board committees, or their delegates, appropriate
management staff and the Company’s external auditor normally attend

annual general meetings to answer shareholders’ questions.

Shareholders are also provided with means by which their inquiries can
be put forward to the Board. Such channels, including designated email

address (ttllcosec@tianteckgroup.com), correspondence address, fax

number and telephone number, are made available on the Company’s
website. Queries relating to shareholders’ own shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Subject to applicable legislation and regulations, in particular the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of
the Company as amended from time to time, shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”, and each a “Shareholder”) may convene general meetings
and put forward proposals at general meetings. The relevant procedure is

set out below:
To convene an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
o The Company holds a general meeting as its AGM every year. This is

usually held in September.

° If the Company fails to hold an AGM (which is unlikely to occur) after:

(@) 15 months have elapsed since the date of the previous AGM
for the year 2014; or

(b) 6 months have elapsed since the end of the Company’s

financial year from the year 2015 onwards;

any Shareholder may apply to the court in Hong Kong which, on such

application, may call or direct the calling of an AGM of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Encouraging participation/interaction (continued)

To move a resolution at an AGM

° Shareholder(s) can make a request to circulate a resolution for an
AGM if they:

(a) represent at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the

AGM to which the request relates; or

(o)  at least 50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on the

resolution at the AGM to which the request relates.

o The request must:

(a) be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;
(o)  identify the proposed resolution;
(c) be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

(d)  be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the
AGM to which the request relates or if later, the time at which
the notice of AGM is despatched.

° The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will request the Board to include the resolution
in the agenda for the AGM. On the contrary, if the request is verified
as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included

in the agenda for the AGM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
To convene a General Meeting (“GM”)

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders having a right to vote at GMs can request the

Directors to call a GM.

The request:

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with

at the meeting;

(b)  may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved

and is intended to be moved at the meeting;

() may consist of several documents in like form;

(d) must be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

and

(e) must be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will request the Board to convene a GM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request is verified
as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this

outcome and accordingly, a GM will not be convened as requested.

Directors must call a GM within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement and the meeting so called must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice

convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not convene a GM as required, the Shareholder(s)
concerned or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves call a GM, and
the meeting so convened must be called for a date not more than
3 months after the date on which the Directors become subject to
the requirement to call a GM. The Company must reimburse any
reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholder(s) requesting the

GM by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to call a GM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

To propose a person other than a Director of the Company for

election as a Director at a GM, including an AGM

In accordance with its Articles of Association, the Company at the
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated office by
electing a person thereto. If a Shareholder (other than the person
to be nominated as mentioned hereinafter), who is duly qualified
to attend and vote at the GM for which the notice of intention as
hereinafter described is to be given, wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director of the Company for election as a Director of
the Company at any GM, he/she should sign and deposit a notice of
intention to that effect at 9th Floor, ISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company,
for the attention of the Board together with a notice signed by the
nominated person of his/her willingness to be elected. The minimum
length of period during which such notices are given shall be at least
7 days and the period for lodgement shall commence no earlier than
the day after despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such
election (inclusive of such day) and end no later than 7 days prior to

the date of such GM (the “Lodgement Period”).

To enable the Company to inform Shareholders of the foregoing
proposal, the written notices as mentioned above shall be
accompanied by (i) the information of the nominated person as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and
(i) the written consent of the nominated person to the publication of

his/her personal data.

Relevant procedure and the Lodgement Period for each GM will
be set out in the corresponding circular to be despatched to the

Shareholders.

If the notice is received less than 15 clear days prior to the GM,
the Company will consider adjourning the GM in order to allow
Shareholders at least 14 clear days or 10 clear business days’ notice

of the proposal, whichever is the longer.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM

Eligible Shareholders can express their views on a matter mentioned
in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt with at a GM
in a written statement of not more than 1,000 words and request the
Company to circulate it to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of a

GM. Eligible Shareholders must represent at least:

(@) 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having the

relevant right to vote; or

(b) 50 Shareholders having the relevant right to vote.

For a statement concerning a matter mentioned in a proposed

resolution, “the relevant right to vote” means a right to vote on that

resolution at the meeting to which the request relates. For a statement
concerning other business, “the relevant right to vote” means a right
to vote at the meeting to which the request relates.

The request must:

(a) be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

(o) identify the statement to be circulated;

(c) be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

(d) be received by the Company at least 7 days before the meeting

to which it relates.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

RRERe(BHERREREFAS)EMERME Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM (Continued)

(#%)

o  ZERBHARAKREELEZE LT . The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrars and
BEAeENRE ’”‘?ﬁ VN/NETP AR PR 23l N upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
SRENRREEZRAE  ERFFEUT Company will circulate the statement to Shareholders entitled to
5 receive notice of the meeting provided that:

() WMZERFEBRHEREAFAE (@)  if the request relates to an AGM,

0] PRl Z WA ZE N B3R AR A - i) the statement is received in time to enable the Company
SARATAEEHERERSE to send a copy of the statement at the same time as the
AEeBEZHEER ARG notice of AGM is despatched; or
E =

(i) HBH - BERERATERER (i)  otherwise, the Shareholder(s) concerned have, not

AFERGRTRBT —EEER
MEFRIA - AN AR R R E

later than 7 days before the AGM, deposited a sum

reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in

£ A 8 5 BR 9 22 A PR il 2= i circulating the statement submitted by the Shareholder(s)
AR o concerned.
(o) WMZERF RIEEEFE RS AR (o) if the request relates to a GM other than an AGM, the

RAE - HERRATENBRRAS
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Shareholder(s) concerned have, not later than 7 days before
the GM, deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in circulating the statement submitted by

the Shareholder(s) concerned.

R WEZEREZREARTEE AR
BENASE el S ut i === ENaPN &S

On the contrary, if the request is verified as not in order or as not

received in time for the Company to include a copy of the statement

AFERGBEA  HEBRERENTEE S
RS RN RIBA N AR BEERA
#EHFR(RFBER) - HRERRSERANE
AR - R E TR ST & R AR KA
RASBENRREE -

in the notice of AGM or the Shareholder(s) concerned has/have failed
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the circulation purpose within the time frame (as the case may be),
the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the statement will not be circulated to Shareholders

entitled to receive notice of the meeting.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) have pleasure in
submitting their annual report together with the audited financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Principal Place of Business

Tian Teck Land Limited (the “Company”) is a company incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal place of
business at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 4 to the financial

statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the Group’s turnover attributable to the largest customer
and to the five largest customers accounted for 14% and 33% of the
Group’s total turnover respectively. The five largest suppliers of the Group

accounted for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these

major customers.
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Financial Statements
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 48 to 122.

Transfer to Reserves

Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$1,421,137,000
(2013: HK$2,792,255,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity.

An interim dividend of HK$0.21 per share (2013: HK$0.17 per share) was
paid on 16 January 2014. The Board now recommends the payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.23 per share (2013: HK$0.21 per share) in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2014.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$2,790,000 (2013: HK$1,525,000).
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EEEE Fixed Assets
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Movements in fixed assets are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

AEEMREMENT

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are set out as follows:

HERSEARNBEYZE

Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation

o 5h RERAR HEFH
Location Existing use Term of lease
BIFR 5 By A
NBERSRBECE ST =5

(NLEERHhER 742557 )

iISQUARE Shopping centre Medium

63 Nathan Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)

FETHKRE THREEA A
HTABRL - —HEAER
LT~ L2 ~ L3R LAFERL
NEBETDRAE-AZTHR
(BB AR 22587)

Good Luck Industrial Building Workshops and Medium
Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor, car parking spaces

and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,

105 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong,

Kowloon

(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

GFET AL Uk - RAE - EHERER A ER
T g ZEREE

NERDPEZRABNBEZT R

(T BB ERS7805%)

Goodluck Industrial Centre

Ground, 2nd, 3rd and 4th Floors,
808 Lai Chi Kok Road,

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

(New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 5780)

e Tian Teck Land Limited X&E# EBR QT

Petrol filing station,
showrooms, car parking

spaces and car workshops

Medium
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BEE&E @) Fixed Assets (continued)
HERSFEREEYE @) Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation
(Continued)
Mo h RERZ HEFH
Location Existing use Term of lease
BREE S0 /N R
hiE

EETHmBR =2+ R

fEEEh -2+ =5%

(835 1 EX3665% )

Euro Trade Centre Offices Long
5th Floor,

Nos. 13-14 Connaught Road Central and

Nos. 21-23 Des Voeux Road Central,

Hong Kong
(Marine Lot No.366)

HZES VN A
NE—ZE+MER

BN T S [

BERABB=1T=5%

Yi An Plaza Offices Medium
Unit 1 to 14, 8th Floor,

No. 33 Jianshe 6 Road,

Yuexiu District,

Guangzhou,

PRC
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors
Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam

Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Director
Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Yau Allen Lee-nam

Tse Pang Yuen

In accordance with articles 103 and 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Cheong Sim Lam, Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles and Mr Yau
Allen Lee-nam shall retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming

annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed
to their respective executive offices in the Company’s subsidiary, Associated
International Hotels Limited, for an initial period of two years effective on
1 January 1986 and their appointments continue after the said period unless

and until either party gives to the other three months’ notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2014, the directors and chief executives of the Company and
their associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)) had the following interests in the
shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”):

(@ The Company

ivgnE 4=

Number of shares

1EE BT
EEES IRAD 482
Az REER NEER g HWESL
Total % of
Personal Family Corporate beneficial  total issued
interests interests interests interests shares
BEE Cheong Hooi Hong 4,085,792 - - 4,085,792 0.85%
§EIEM Cheong Kheng Lim 46,028,872 115,292 - 46,139,164 9.72%
FEpiped Cheong Keng Hooi 26,862,036 1,002,384 - 27,864,420 5.87%
fked) Cheong Sim Lam 1,099,504 - - 1,099,504 0.23%
SRS Cheong Chong Ling 412,000 - - 412,000 0.09%
VAR R Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2,000 - 115,200 117,200 0.02%
(7E) (Note)
3 AT TA115,2000% AR E AR A T AT Note: The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares

B #115,2000 B th - RIBFE 5G] - EER
TR BRI SRR R A

held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.
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EENESTBRAEEENI Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
% HEROFEREWEZR  Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares

KA ) and Debentures (continued)
(o) SNEEIBIERRAF (b) Associated International Hotels Limited

EERHE

Number of ordinary shares

1EE BT

EEES RAD B2

AR REER AR g HWESL

Total % of

Personal Family Corporate beneficial  total issued

interests interests interests interests shares

EIBE Cheong Hooi Hong 2,073,992 - - 2,073,992 0.58%

SEIEM Cheong Kheng Lim 24,555,715 1,034,000 - 25589,715 7.11%

S e Cheong Keng Hooi 11,759,839 275,280 - 12,035,119 3.34%

fepede) Cheong Sim Lam 1,807,155 24,000 - 1,831,155 0.51%

Eie Cheong Chong Ling 1,588,000 - - 1,588,000 0.44%

VAR R Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 242,000 - 120,000 362,000 0.10%
(7E) (Note)

i ARIER T HY120,0000% BB E AR A B FT i Note: The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary
B 19120,0000% LiE A% o AR AN - 4R shares held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken
SRR REB UL ER DR - to be interested in such shares under the SFO.

(c) REBRAT (c) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

HERHE

Number of ordinary shares

EE BT

IR

B A2 - f AR 8 WEDL

% of

Personal Family Corporate beneficial  total issued

interests interests interests interests shares

R Cheong Hooi Hong 25 - - 25 25%
SEIEMN Cheong Kheng Lim 25 - - 25 25%
SEAME Cheong Keng Hooi 25 - - 25 25%
frpode) Cheong Sim Lam 25 - - 25 25%

e Tian Teck Land Limited X&E# EBR QT
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EENBRETHAEHEMNE Interests and Short Positions of Directors and

% RO FEREEZR  Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares

KA ) and Debentures (continued)

(d =EERAB(REBEBFEF) (d) Yik Fok Investment Holding Company, Limited
(In Members’ Voluntary Liquidation)

EEREE

Number of ordinary shares

HE BT

RAD B

B AR REER AT ERE # WEDL

Total % of

Personal Family Corporate beneficial  total issued

interests interests interests interests shares

EEIE Cheong Hooi Hong 10 - - 10 0.00005%
SEIEM Cheong Kheng Lim 10 - - 10 0.00005%
B Cheong Keng Hooi 10 - - 10 0.00005%
fEpe) Cheong Sim Lam 10 - - 10 0.00005%

B Ll TR ERE SN - R RIRRE S KNP 5E352 Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the directors and
BREHBENEECMEBE TR - SIRRBZEXESTRIAE chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
HANAARRNT RS EHMBER  RT Rules) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
—UF=A=1+—H ' AREES :ZaTHA or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
EREBME A (G EMBAZTEE)ESEHEAE R meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
N F S EARRSEE (B A B IEHEXVIRETE kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
TEE)NKD - BERD K EEEOESZSAR - to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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TEREREMATEENIRY  Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
FMEEROOERNRE Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

W% Fl AR BE s N AR EE RESTHA Bk As at 31 March 2014, other than the interests of the directors and chief
N AATERA  WRIECIRBEEENE executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been

33 F N B RN ERET - R=E—I notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded
FZA=T—HEEARARMOIERENT :

in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the

SFO:
HERIT
R B8
RHEEE HEZL
Percentage
Number of of total
shares issued shares
REBRAA] Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 237,370,032 50.001%
EIBHR Cheong Kheng Lim 46,139,164 9.72%

(F£1) (Note 1)

EImrE Cheong Keng Hooi 27,864,420 5.87%
(312) (Note 2)

HNE# Lim Yoke Soon 46,139,164 9.72%
(311) (Note 1)

NE= Wu Soo Huei 27,864,420 5.87%
(312) (Note 2)

E3E Notes:

©) EBMAEEMPENRSAANEBELTIHED 1) The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is the same as the 46,139,164
46,139,164 A% A% (7 #8[F) ° 7£46,139,164 I A% 15 & - shares disclosed by Ms Lim Yoke Soon. Out of the 46,139,164 shares,
46,023,872k BEEBM T AERFE - 115,292 Al A H 46,023,872 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, and 115,292 shares
BB BL A - were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

@ ERBLEMEEORESERNEELTIHESN 2 The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Keng Hooi is the same as the 27,864,420
27,864,420 [ I& 10 tE Rl © #£27,864,420 & I&1h & - shares disclosed by Ms Wu Soo Huei. Out of the 27,864,420 shares,
26,862,036/% AE Mg £3FH - 1,002,384% 8] & 26,862,036 shares were held by Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, and 1,002,384 shares
HEBREELTHE - were held by his spouse, Ms Wu Soo Huei.

B PR EEN RS —mME=A=+— Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, no other interests or short

B - AN B S R a E A R positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
WA IH) -~ /AN Az

(I B 336 1E T B AT R B M 2 A T 5 A48 recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO

K IS NN Y A 7]

A e St b have been notified to the Company.
BRI EVRE R SRR ©

Tian Teck Land Limited X&E# EBR QT
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BEEEEESHNRR Directors’ Interests in Contracts

AN E) sk E T IR AR R ST B8 A Bl AR 3R No contract of significance, to which the Company, its controlling
REFEMAER LA YAEMAARESHE shareholder or any of their subsidiaries was a party, or in which a director of
ESEEBEEEAFNEZNEELL - the Company had a material interest (whether directly or indirectly), subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SIS Management Contracts
@@ AAFEHEABS0.01%EEHME AR — i ()  Agreements exist between the Company and Associated International
BESAEAR AT ([S5 |) BEARNTETA & Hotels Limited (“AIHL”), a 50.01% owned subsidiary, whereby AlHL
BRI o BIEZEWS - YRS AKX agrees to provide administrative services (company secretarial) and
NEHEEITERE (A FMWE) R IEFTHRE non-administrative services (office facilities and staff) to the Company
(BA=RERBE) - KAAFIREHE_Z for an indefinite period. The aggregate fees paid to AIHL for the
—pNE=HA=+—HIEFERS T FINEL year ended 31 March 2014 amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2013:
AR & F 4258 A 78 51,200,000 ( — 2 —= HK$1,200,000).

£ 1 ##1,200,0007T) ©

(b) SEEFEERITYESEERAT([FER (b) A management agreement exists between AIHL and DTZ Debenham
TR TEEWE - BERSE - SER1T Tie Leung Property Management Limited (“DTZ”) whereby DTZ is
BEEEREEN—RIEFRYESIE(HE responsible for general building and property management (except
EERENREBRIN) - ZEBHECH for the services relating to tenancy) of ISQUARE. The management
—E——E#NANARESRtT+ @A H agreement was renewed for a term of twelve months commencing
BEEEAHER  WYBMAESRE R on 6 August 2012 and shall be automatically renewed on an annual
oHE_ST—NFE=—A=+—HItFE - basis thereafter, subject to the right of termination by AIHL. Manager’s
YD L RS TR E B4 A #600,0007T remuneration of HK$600,000 (2013: HK$600,000) was paid by AlHL
(ZZE—=% : #%600,0007T) ° for the year ended 31 March 2014.

i ERIHEEE AN - ARA TR ANEE A (A Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and
jz%%uﬂ{ﬂﬁﬁﬁi?:g%ﬁ%jﬁqngﬁﬂ o HE IR administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
BH o Company was entered into or existed during the year.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the Company
and its Subsidiaries of its Listed Securities
There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Disclosure Relating to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

At the Company level, there are no changes in respect of the directors’
emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2014 when compared with the

last financial year.

At the Group level, the changes in the directors’ emoluments for the year
ended 31 March 2014 as compared with the last financial year are due
to allowances for expenses actually incurred by the executive directors at
the subsidiary level. The Group’s policy regarding such expenses has not

changed.

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March

2014 are set out in notes 22 to 24 to the financial statements.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 123 to 124 of the annual report.

Retirement Schemes
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 27 to the financial

statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.
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Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive

directors to be independent.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year

ended 31 March 2014.

Auditors
KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2014
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Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 67, has been the Chairman and a director
of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983
and 1984 respectively. He currently is the Chief Executive Officer and the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company and Associated
International Hotels Limited. He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong is
a member of both the CPA Australia and the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Singapore. He holds a diploma from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology in Commerce. He has extensive experience in
property development and investment both in Hong Kong and Singapore for

over 40 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi

and Cheong Sim Lam.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 65, has been the Deputy Chairman and a
director of the Company since 1983 and 1969 respectively. He has been
the Deputy Chairman and a director of Associated International Hotels
Limited since 1984. He currently is the Chief Operation Officer of Associated
International Hotels Limited and a member of the nomination committee of
the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited. Mr Cheong is
also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and various

subsidiaries in the Group.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 61, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Project Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and
various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of

Business Administration from the University of Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Sim Lam.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 55, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Investment Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and
various subsidiaries in the Group. He obtained a certificate in Accounting
and General Business from Kapiolani Community College, Hawaii and has

over 34 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Keng Hooi.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling, aged 43, joined the Group as an assistant to
directors in 1997. She has been a director of the Company and Associated
International Hotels Limited since 2007. She is the Chief Administration
Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited. Miss Cheong holds a
degree of Bachelor of Science from the School of Hotel Administration at

Cornell University.

She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, a director.

Non-executive Director

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, OBE, aged 78, has been a director of the
Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1984 and
1985 respectively. He currently also serves on the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Sin is a solicitor and a notary public and holds a degree of
Master of Arts from the University of Cambridge. He was Chairman of Kam
Ngan Stock Exchange from 1985 to 1986 and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited from 1987 to 1988. He was a former Chairman of the Home
Ownership Scheme Committee and the Management Committee of the
Hong Kong Housing Authority and a former member of the Urban Council

and the Executive Committee of the Housing Society.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 58, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since
2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee (as chairman),
remuneration committee (as chairman) and nomination committee (as
member) of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited.
Mr Chow has significant experience in accounting and finance and has been
an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales since 1983 and an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia since 1988 and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam, aged 73, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since
2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company and Associated
International Hotels Limited. Mr Yau has extensive legal knowledge and
experience. He qualified as a barrister in England in 1964 and practised as
an advocate and solicitor in Singapore and Malaysia, and as an advocate in
the State of Brunei before coming to Hong Kong. Mr Yau was admitted to

Hong Kong Bar in 1985 and practised as a barrister until 2001.

Mr Tse Pang Yuen, aged 68, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He currently also serves on the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Mr Tse is a veteran lawyer. He is admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong, England and Singapore and has been a managing partner of Messrs
Stephen Lo & P. Y. Tse, Solicitors since 1987.
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Senior Management

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 63, joined the Group in 1987 and has
been the financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Group, Miss
Chan was a chief accountant of the Group’s ultimate holding company. She

has over 34 years of experience in accounting and financial management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 57, joined the Company in 1981 and has been

the Group’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, ACIS, ACS, aged 44, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Group in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company

and Associated International Hotels Limited since 2004.

Ms Wong Siu Mei, CPA, ACCA, aged 45, is the accounting manager of the
Company. She holds a degree of Master of Professional Accounting from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Company in
2008, Ms Wong worked for a multinational corporation over 9 years in field

of accounting and treasury.

Note: Miss Chan, Mr Choi and Ms Ng are employed by Associated International
Hotels Limited and serve the Company pursuant to the management agreement
between the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited.

Annual Report 2013-2014 £ @




46

\

38 3 2 B R

Independent Auditor’'s Report

cnac

B ZBERE
FREBEHWERRIBRR
(REEFMA T EER )

AAZEET (AT R ) EE RN ENE48H
E%u&ﬁ%ﬁmﬁﬁ@@aﬁ%@ﬂﬁ&ﬁ%%

AIGEIEEE ) NRE B ®E - EREa i
ﬁﬁ% BERZZE—NF=A=1+—HNGEE
EBBERKEATIMNEEAGBREHEZALSF
ERIGABRE GAXHERER GAERE
BERMGARLRER  ULRTESHBERE
READERREE R -

EERES
g

BERANEZRARERBEBEEHMAGEMND
(BAUBHREEADREB(ARGRIDERES
MBHE  NSHEAMBHRRELEEMATFH
R REEEFRA/YRRGE W RERE L
EHERBEAEES - NEREMBRRTFER
TRERFF Sk FR AR M G B H) B R FARR R AL ©

B SRR A AR

BREETNEE
BHMOETEREBERMNEZEZSGE M BR
FEHER - RMZIRBHHEECA &L
(%622F )R 11E80KRIIRTE - ERIEBEBRR
RS o BRULLASN - BPIRIRE ET 0] AIEE M A
B® o BRI TIHARSENAD - HEMEMA
TEHENREEZEF -

BPCRBEEEGHMASRMN(EEEE
ADHETTEZ - BLEANBKEFIETERRH
YR RAITEZ - LA EBEIFRA MR
REBNEEEMEAFHREM -

Tian Teck Land Limited X{E#EHR A 7

Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Shareholders of Tian Teck Land Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tian Teck Land
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 48 to 122, which comprise the consolidated and Company
balance sheets as at 31 March 2014, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 June 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-ZE-—NE=A=+—BILEE(UE%DI’R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2014
SEoE
$°000
=E 3] Turnover 3 617,159 527,502
BRAS R A Cost of services (68,461) (68,964)
EF Gross profit 548,698 458,538
E AU A Other revenue 5 2,940 4,003
H s #58 Other net income 5 68 18,746
1TIE A Administrative expenses (43,449) (41,847)
REYEMLESEAN Profit from operations before valuation
KRR changes in investment properties 508,257 439,440
REMEGHERT Valuation gains on investment properties 13(a) 999,913 2,424,716
REVELEEBHEN Profit from operations after valuation
KRR changes in investment properties 1,508,170 2,864,156
L&A Finance costs 6(a) (3,048) (2,257)
BB AT F Profit before taxation 6 1,505,122 2,861,899
FriS %t Income tax 9(a) (83,985) (69,644)
REERF Profit for the year 10 1,421,137 2,792,255
THALHEM Attributable to:
— DR R — Equity shareholders of the Company 10 730,105 1,425,698
— FEIEAR AR R — Non-controlling interests 691,032 1,366,557
AEERR Profit for the year 1,421,137 2,792,255
SRE2R —EXREBE Earnings per share - basic and diluted 12 $1.54 $3.00

SEE5 B EFE122 AWM LB AN A —&f7D
BRANEEZMNEMNARERERREREHNFIEY Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
BRI -

The notes on pages 55 to 122 form part of these financial statements.

attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 11.
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MERXHBERR
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BE-Z-NF=A=1+—BLFE (B R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2014
FTr
$000

REERA Profit for the year 1,421,137

AEEFEHMEEWA (BRBIIER  Other comprehensive income for the year

REHPERAER) : (after tax and reclassification adjustments):
HignaeEmoEsEan ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to
IEHE : profit or loss:
— A EREES  AFER — Available-for-sale equity securities: changes in
ERERO AL BEZE) fair value recognised during the year 2,288 1,566
— BINHT B A R B RREF AT — Realisation of exchange reserve upon liquidation
SNERBEEIR of overseas subsidiaries - (18,355)
2,288 (16,789)
AEEZEBALLE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,423,425 2,775,466
THALHEMR : Attributable to:
— NEESRR — Equity shareholders of the Company 732,393 1,418,085
— FEEAR AR R A — Non-controlling interests 691,032 1,357,381
AEEZEBALE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,423,425 2,775,466
FE55B 2 FE122B M IB A EIHERH —Z 5D The notes on pages 55 to 122 form part of these financial statements.

Annual Report 2013-2014 &£ @




BEEAEEX
Balance Sheets
R-ZE—ME=A=+—H (BT R) At 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

rEE AT
The Group The Company

kRBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets 13
—REME — Investment properties 13,716,191 12,731,899 293,890 262,000
— H{ib¥E - WiE  — Other properties, plant
e and equipment 94,886 101,587 — —
13,811,077 12,833,486 293,890 262,000
B ARIEI#EZ  Interest in subsidiaries 14 - — 223,078 235,611
Al EREZRES  Available-for-sale equity securities 15 9,391 7,103 = —
13,820,468 12,840,589 516,968 497,611
REBEE Current assets
FEWEESR - 5]& K% Accounts receivable, deposits
TR and prepayments 16 26,451 32,407 731 827
REAFEM TSR Current tax recoverable 9(0) = 3 = —
EEABRITIFR Pledged bank deposits 17 244,580 262,550 = —
B NRIBEE[EY  Cashand cash equivalents 18 235,389 159,350 23,958 18,302
506,420 454,310 24,689 19,129
REAE Current liabilities
SR1ITER — B Bank loan - secured 22 - 200,000 - —
HEEN R R Other payables and
et & accruals 19 62,503 79,709 3,182 1,922
BT S Deposits received 20 178,808 169,708 1,929 1,899
REARS & & Provision for long service
payments 21 1,520 1,573 - —
RETEAIE Obligations under finance leases 23 34 41 = —
RERFER P SHS Current tax payable 9(c) 29,963 23,205 317 —
272,828 474,236 5,428 3,821
Net current assets/(liabilities)
233,592 (19,926) 19,261 15,308
Total assets less current
liabilities 14,054,060 12,820,663 536,229 512,919
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B ESER Balance Sheets
R-Z—ME=A=+—H(UB%IIR) At 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REH

The Group

2014
T
$000

AT
The Company

kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RITEHR — BEM  Bank loan - secured 22 200,000 - = —
FER BT B Government lease premiums
payable 24 2,091 2,143 — —
e A Obligations under finance leases 23 4 38 = —
RIETIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 9(d) 41,692 34,280 980 911
243,787 36,461 980 911
EEZHE NET ASSETS 13,810,273 12,784,202 535,249 512,008
BEXR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 25
AR - EE Share capital: nominal value - 118,683 — 118,683
HiATEEAREEE  Other statutory capital reserves - 3,147 = 3,147
AR A K E At A TE Share capital and other statutory
BARGEE capital reserves 25(b) 121,830 121,830 121,830 121,830
HAbfEE Other reserves 6,968,922 6,435,917 413,419 390,178
7,090,752 6,557,747 535,249 512,008
IR R RER Non-controlling interests 6,719,521 6,226,455 = —
ERAE TOTAL EQUITY 13,810,273 12,784,202 535,249 512,008

EEEN T FENA SR AfET A B

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2014.

EF
B

Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim

Director Director

EEE

FE5AEF122BNMEB AN HIHRH—&F 7 -

The notes on pages 55 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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mEERBER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-ZE-—NE=A=+—BILEE(UE%DI’R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AARRRRER
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FER
ke RGER EfER  HERG EARE REEA E RRER

Non-

Share Share Revaluation  Exchange  Fairvalue Capital  Retained controlling

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests

(i T T T T Tr T T T T
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

201241 B &8s Balance at 1 April 2012 118,683 3,147 900,951 9210 3,692 77845 4201784 5315312 5,049,043 10,364,355
KEERRSH:  Changesin equity forthe year:
RER AT Proft for the year - - - - - ~ 1405608 1425608 1366557 279225
Eh2ERA Other comprehensive income - - - (©.210) 1,566 3 - 7613 0176 (16,789
el Total comprehensive income - - - (9.210) 1,566 31 1425698 1418085 1,357,381 2,775,466
EOHBATEER  Release upon liuidation of

HEE overseas subsidiaries - - - - - (17818) 77876 - - -
BRE-BIERRE  Diidends approved in respect of

ke the previous financial year () - - - - - - (4946 (94946) - (494)
BINREHEESE  Dividends declared in respect of

KRS the current financial year 1) - - - - - — 80704 (80,704) A ]
SAFBRER Dividends paid to non-controling

HiRE interests - - - - - - - - (179969  (179,969)

- - - (9.210) 1,566 (77845) 1327924 1242435 1177412 2419847

H2013%E3B31AK  Balance at 31 March 2013 and

013F4R1RMER 1 April 2013 118,683 3147 900,951 - 5,258 - 5520708 6,557,747 6,226,455 12,784,202
KEEEESH:  Changesin equity forthe year:
REERA Profit for the year - - - - - - 730,105 730,105 691,032 1,421,137
Af2ENA Other comprehensive income - - - - 2,288 - - 2,268 - 2,268
SEMAES Total comprehensive income - - - - 2,288 - 730105 732393 691,032 1423425
B E—BHEEHE  Dividends approved in respect of
fRE the previous financial year 11(0) - - - - - - (99,694)  (99,694) - (99,694)
H014E3A3EHE  Transtion to no-par value regime
EEZAENE on 3 March 2014 B 31T (3147) - = = - - - - -
BINREHEESE  Dividends declared in respect of
ks the current financial year 1) - - - - - - (99694 (99,694) - (996%)
SAFBRER Dividends paid to non-controling
fIRE interests - - - - - - - - (197,966)  (197,966)
3,147 (3,147) - - 2,288 - 530,717 533,005 493,066 1,026,071
R201453A31A%  Balance at 31 March 2014
i 121,830 - 900,951 - 7,546 - 6060425 7,090,752 6,719,521 13,810,273

FOEEF122BNWEBAMBHREN—3 5 - The notes on pages 55 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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GERERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BHE-Z-—NE=A=+—BILEE(UE%FI’R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2014
Fr Fr
$°000 $°000
R SEE Operating activities
PREL AT T Profit before taxation 1,505,122 2,861,899
FEIER - Adjustments for:
— FEHA — Interest income (2,194) (3,040)
— BB — Finance costs 3,048 2,257
— e — Depreciation 9,721 9,504
— EWMEGE — Valuation gains on
Z 7 investment properties (999,913) (2,424,716)
— REETEE — Net (gain)/loss on
(&F),/ a8 disposals of fixed assets
HRE (69) 101
— FTESHME — Dividend income from listed
A securities (132) (115)
— SNESE S 518, — Foreign exchange loss/(gain)
(&F)) 25 (344)
— BINHB AT — Realisation of exchange
TERREF Y INE reserve upon liquidation of
REER overseas subsidiaries - (18,355)
(989,514) (2,434,708)
EEESEHA Operating profit before
KRR changes in working capital 515,608 427,191
FEUWBE - 54 % Decrease in accounts receivable,
FER R deposits and prepayments 6,153 8,004
HAithfEA K ST Increase/(decrease) in
ERILH,Or4)  other payables and accruals 1,841 (224)
EURETEIE N Increase in deposits received 9,100 30,886
REARTS & 28> Decrease in provision for
long service payments (53) (29)
JENEFH(ER Y Decrease in government
lease premiums payable (50) (47)
16,991 38,590
RS EIKFTBMIRE Cash generated from
operations 532,599 465,781
BAHIE Tax paid
— E2NEBFEHE  — Hong Kong profits tax paid (69,557) (78,343)
— BREEIMNIHIE  — Overseas tax refunded — 7
— ENHERIE — PRC tax paid (255) 231)
(69,812) (78,567)
KESEEFTSH Net cash generated from
REFHE operating activities 462,787 387,214
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REED
WA E
BABEEEMNK
(TEREREMH)

BEVE LR

REBTEEMS
IR

MR
EHEMIRITEROR D

REFEREH
RERE

BMEES
ENREHERSH
BAERD
B BT E RS

BEERITER
HIGIRITERAS
IR
ERRITERFS
B EA AR
EXfIBRE

B IHERRAR
35\

BERE AN
REFH

RERREZEY
TR

72013/20124
AB1ENEER
HEEEY

INEERBHNTE

M3ASTENEER
HBEZEY

Investing activities

Interest received

Payment for purchase of fixed
assets other than investment
properties

Payment for expenditure on
investment properties

Proceeds from disposals of fixed
assets

Dividends received

Decrease in pledged bank
deposits

Net cash generated from
investing activities

Financing activities

Capital element of finance lease
rentals paid

Interest paid on government
lease premiums payable

Repayment of bank loan

Proceeds from new bank loan

Interest paid on bank loan

Other borrowing costs paid

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests

Net cash used in financing
activities

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 April 2013/2012

Effect of foreign exchange
rates changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 March

FERELHRER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BE-ZE-—NE=A=+—BILEE(UBE%FI’R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2014
S SEoE
$000 $000
1,997
(3,026)

(3,146)
75
132
17,970

14,002
(41)
(109)
(200,000)
200,000
(2,331)
(857)
(199,388)
(197,966)

(400,692)

76,097

159,350

(58)

18 235,389

Tt

$°000
3,289
(980)
(13,105)
1
115
13,802

3,122
(41)
(112)
(1,963)
(201)
(175,650)
(179,969)

(357,936)

32,400

127,143

(193)

159,350

FEEEF122BEMM B AT BHREN—BD -

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT

The notes on pages 55 to 122 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 35|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1
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1

Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and saving
arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out
in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
following assets are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties (see note 1(g)); and

— financial instruments classified as available-for-sale equity
securities (see note 1(d)).
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B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% %%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive

rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.



(L% % %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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B ZME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(©

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders

of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is

recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or joint venture.
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B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% %%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i)(ii)), unless

the investment is classified as held for sale.

Available-for-sale equity securities
The Group’s policies for investments in equity securities, other

than investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

The Group designates investments in equity securities as
available-for-sale equity securities. Available-for-sale equity
securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their
transaction price unless it is determined that the fair value at
initial recognition differs from the transaction price and that
fair value is evidence by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes

attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, at each balance sheet date
the fair value of these investments is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. Dividend income from these investments is recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note
1(p)(ii). When these investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 1(i)(i)), the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from

equity to profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 1(i)(i)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell

the investments or they expire.
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B ZME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value, unless they are still in the course of construction or
development at the balance sheet date and their fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted

for as described in note 1(p)(i).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(g)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as

described in note 1(g).

Other properties, plant and equipment
Other properties, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation (see note 1(h)) and impairment losses

(see note 1(i)(ii).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.
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(9 HEEE (9) Leased assets
MEAEER—BLH(BE—ERX
S — R 5) HETE BT HEHME
NEEE—IHg — LS T A EMNFRE
PUBRER —E o ZE 5K - RIEEBLHE
FBEBRIBEE—HEE - BEREMU
HEBLTHNEEMETEHAE M
TEEBELEER P REERNEER
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An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is

regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
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Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:
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property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(e)); and

land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.
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B ZME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

(9)

(i

(il

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included
in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(h). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(i)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an

investment property (see note 1(g)).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other

properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual

value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

— Land and buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 40

years after the date of completion

— Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
equipment

— Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment

have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated

on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is

depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
() Impairment of assets

)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
accounts and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and accounts and other
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention to the Group about one

or more of the following loss events:
— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinguency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and
— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value

of an investment in an equity instrument below its

cost.
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— For accounts and other receivables carried
at amortised cost, the impairment losses of
bad and doubtful debts are measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and

accounts and other receivables (Continued)

— For available-for-sale equity securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in
the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset

previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets

is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of accounts receivable,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(i

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
other properties, plant and equipment and investments
in subsidiaries in the Company’s balance sheet may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

— Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair values less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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B ZME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(i

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

— Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use

(if determinable).

— Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals

are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as
it would at the end of the financial year (see notes 1(i)())
and (ii)).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment
(Continued)
Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and not

profit or loss.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts (see note 1(i)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost

less allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts.

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(1)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash

flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs

involving the payment of termination benefits.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.
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B ZME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(e),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the balance sheet date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.
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B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% %%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(i) Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.
(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.
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(L% %%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange

reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss

on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.



B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L 8% 5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 EFESTEHEX@ 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(s) EBAHEA (s) Related parties
@ —BATHZATHRELR (@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
WRAESAEBNBE S @ W related to the Group if that person:
BEAT
) HAREEHEFIRERELR 0] has control or joint control over the Group;
PEHIRE
iy HAEBEERFES: (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
sk
iy RAEBEIAEBEFAF] (i) is a member of the key management personnel of
MBEREEIEAS - the Group or the Group’s parent.
b) —EEBWOFAETMETIIE (o)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
- R R AR AN S B e B conditions applies:
7o
() ZELHEAEEBEHAR ()  The entity and the Group are members of the
—SEEMKE(AIEER same group (which means that each parent,
7l MiBA RIARE R B subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
NEF LA ) others).
iy —EAEBES—EEHOH (i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
BRRNEEDE (IR other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
S—EBFBEEETK member of a group of which the other entity is a
ENBEARINAEED member).
%)
iy MEEEEHER—F=7 (i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
HEEDE - party.
ivy —REREEFE=FEEN (v)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
GEtE mME—EHEZS the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
ZEZHEBEENEER
S
(v) ZEEIEAAEEER () The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
SEE@HMNEENES the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
& I AL BER 12 | FET entity related to the Group.
2l o
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(L% %%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(s)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vl A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.



B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 BIBENEH 2 Changes in Accounting Policies
BB QT AGEM T ZEITH(E B The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments
WEEBNDACE B IS TREZEREHEET - to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of
B TR TSR] E A S B AR 5] & AT HY the Group and the Company. Of these, the following developments
SEHHEREIRER « B - LATER|E are relevant to the Group’s financial statements:
AEBMBOPEREAE
— (BEBQFE)FEAREIIBH —  Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
WENEY—HE2EBRAEENZE — Presentation of items of other comprehensive income
3]
— (BEUBREENIE10R&GLE 0 —  HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements
K
— (BBMBREERDE12R AN EAMM —  HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

BRSO

— (BBUBREEIDEIRIAAE —  HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement
Bt

—  (EBUHHREER)2009F £ 2011 —  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009—2011 Cycle
FRHRF E e

AEBWERBIAEE SR MAE The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that

WEFTAER sk o AEBRNFTH S is not yet effective for the current accounting period. Impacts of the

STRCEBIISHMEER DI Emuian T adoption of new or amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

(@) (BBEFTERNE1EES (@ Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
[ ERNES — Hthe financial statements — Presentation of
HERAIBEEWE ] items of other comprehensive income
EEETHEE  WEMZEWAERAE The amendments require entities to present separately
FEBETIEETERARREEF DA the items of other comprehensive income that would be
Fi8% 0 BIERAEZEEE EHiKk reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions
EENMHOHAEBERNHEMEEB AR are met from those that would never be reclassified to profit
BOHEY - AP EMEROGEEE or loss. The presentation of other comprehensive income in
BRAEZVEME2EWARE/ED the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in these
FEFEREE o financial statements has been modified accordingly.
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B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% %%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial
Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements, relating to the
preparation of consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC
12 Consolidation — Special purpose entities. It introduces a
single control model to determine whether an investee should
be consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has power
over the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and the ability to use its power to
affect the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has
changed its accounting policy with respect to determining
whether it has control over an investee. The adoption does not
change any of the control conclusions reached by the Group in
respect of its involvement with other entities as at 1 April 2013.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other
entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated
structured entities. The disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are
generally more extensive than those previously required by
the respective standards. To the extent that the requirements
are applicable to the Group, the Group has provided those
disclosures in note 14.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13
also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non-financial
instruments. To the extent that the requirements are applicable
to the Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in
notes 13(c) and 26(f). The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not
have any material impact on the fair value measurements of the
Group’s assets and liabilities.

The other developments have had no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Turnover
The principal activity of the Group is property investment.

Turnover represents gross rental income received and receivable from
investment properties.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only one
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenues. During the year, revenue from this customer amounted to
approximately $89,154,000 (2013: $67,947,000).

Segment Information
The Group has a single reportable segment which is “Property
leasing”. Accordingly, the business segment information for this sole

reportable segment is equivalent to the consolidated figures.
No separate geographical information is presented as the Group’s

revenue and results of property leasing were derived from Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Other Revenue and Net Income

2014
T
$°000
Henlr A Other revenue
A BUA Interest income 2,194 3,040
ETESHFHNREMA Dividend income from listed securities 132 115
Hith Others 614 848
2,940 4,003
Hiua#58 Other net income
TEHNHT B A BB B Realisation of exchange reserve upon
INEREEEIER liquidation of overseas subsidiaries = 18,355
BEBTEERF,(EE) Net gain/(loss) on disposals of
HER fixed assets 69 (101)
SN, (E518), /B FFEE  Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain (25) 345
EAith Others 24 147
68 18,746
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B | K HEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 BRBIBNEF 6 Profit Before Taxation
BRIFDEFI IR, (GTA) ¢ Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
2014
T
$°000
(@) ®ERAX (@) Finance costs
IRITERAE Interest on bank loan 2,045 1,947
FERBUFHB LB Interest on government lease premiums
payable 108 110
HAE A A Other borrowing costs 895 200
3,048 2,257
(b) BIE (o)  Staff costs
e TEREMEF Salaries, wages and other benefits 38,063 38,388
FERFERIKRGT B Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,084 1,114
39,147 39,502
(c) EHMEE (c) Otheritems
BEMENES Gross rental income from investment
WAz properties (617,159) (527,502)
o B X Less: Direct outgoings 68,461 68,964
(548,698) (458,538)
FEWERFUREE 1B Impairment losses on accounts receivable = 1,252
% E AR & Auditor’s remuneration
— ZEURTS — audit services 1,103 1,030
— MR ARTS — tax services 116 155
— H RS — other services 318 302
e Depreciation 9,721 9,504
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B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 EEME 7 Directors’ Remuneration
BEFHEBCRAEDN)(F622F) Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of Schedule
MIR115E 7816 » WARRBIEBCRA TMED) 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with
(F32E)F161ETHMMESHMS T ¢ reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

E2c A= 4: BINETE 2014
EEHWe REYAR BIETEAL R BE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
$000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000
HITES Executive Directors
EEE Cheong Hooi Hong 100 1,505 700 = 2,305
BB Cheong Kheng Lim 100 2,904* 700 21 3,725
EmE Cheong Keng Hooi 100 1,493 300 - 1,893
B Cheong Sim Lam 100 1,779 300 - 2,179
BRI Cheong Chong Ling 100 765 120 20 1,005
FHITES Non-executive Director
VEAERE Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 100 550 - - 650
BYFHITEE Independent Non-executive
Directors
B Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 - - - 340
25 Yau Allen Lee-nam 340 - - - 340
g Tse Pang Yuen 170 = = = 170
1,450 8,996 2,120 | 12,607
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B | K HEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 EEMew 7 Directors’ Remuneration (continued)
BEFHEBCRAEDN)(F622F) Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of Schedule
MIR115E 781K - WARRBIEBCABED) 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with
(FERE)F161EFBNESHE 0T - reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
(#B) Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows: (continued)

e - ERL
REWMH &
REEES
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions
7 FT T T
$000 $000 $000 $000
HITES Executive Directors
FEE Cheong Hooi Hong 100 1,565 700 - 2,365
BB Cheong Kheng Lim 100 3,182 700 21 4,003
e Cheong Keng Hooi 100 1,600 300 - 2,000
2223 Cheong Sim Lam 100 2,161 300 - 2,561
=2y Cheong Chong Ling 100 812 120 19 1,051

FHTES Non-executive Director

Hia Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 100 550 — — 650

BYFHITESE Independent Non-executive

Directors
AZE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 - - - 340
kEH Yau Allen Lee-nam 340 - - - 340
Bl Tse Pang Yuen 170 — — — 170
1,450 9,870 2,120 40 13,480
* EHEIABERASEEMEEIREEEYYE * The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of residential
e - (HEF A E A 4 A 3,210,000 T properties to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an aggregate estimated rental
(== —=4% : 3,066,0007T) ° value of approximately $3,210,000 (2013: $3,066,000).
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B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8 EmmaMEAL 8 Individuals with Highest Emoluments
—E-CZFERCEUFERUSESHER The five highest paid individuals for 2013 and 2014 are all directors of
ATHEARQARINESE  HEf€BHEHR the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7.

MHEET o

9 FEB 9 Income Tax

(@) HmEBBRKRFIRWATERHE (@) Taxation in the consolidated income
B statement represents:

2014
FTr
$000

AHBIE - FEREBH Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax

RNEE R TAAERE Provision for the year 76,270 61,348
NTFELEEDZ Under-provision in respect of prior years 47 183
76,317 61,531
A E — Current tax — PRC
REEPIEES Provision for the year 256 235
IEERLIE Deferred tax
REMEAREBENE Changes in fair value of investment properties 248 326
RN EREMEEMNELD Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 7,164 7,552
7,412 7,878
83,985 69,644
EXENEMESEZILAEENGE The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at
JERFBURFILA16.56% (= — =4 : 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for
16.5%) I EFHE - FEFIBRIR the year. PRC taxation is calculated based on the applicable
FEEE RIS AR EANTR X rate of taxation in accordance with the relevant tax rules and
= regulations of the PRC.
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B | K HEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 MEB@ 9 Income Tax (continued)
(b) FTEH X HMIZEABR RS (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
EEthaffE R accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2014
T
$000

B R A Profit before taxation 1,505,122 2,861,899

IRPBIE AR B RIE1S % FHY Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated
AR ERBIADGES  at the rates applicable to profits in the

K Z R countries concerned 248,101 471,852
TE R HEITIESZ  Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 639 436
BE TN SERTHIERZE  Tax effect of non-taxable income (164,802) (402,827)
DAEFEEBTR Under-provision in prior years 47 183
ERHEES Actual tax expense 83,985 69,644
s = — , . .
c) EEEBRMTWAEMSE (c) Current taxation in the balance sheets
WA represents:

AEE PN
The Group The Company

NEEEBFEH  Provision for Hong Kong

A profits tax for the year 76,270 61,348 499 —
DA E SRS Provisional profits tax paid (46,329) (38,167) (182) —
29,941 23,181 317 —
RER A PRC taxation 22 21 = —
29,963 23,202 317 —

K& Representing:
NER R FT S AR Current tax recoverable — @) - —
AEREFTERL Current tax payable 29,963 23,205 317 —
29,963 23,202 317 —

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT




B ZME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 FrEH e 9 Income Tax (continued)
d) EERELEFIEEENESE (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised:
() AEE )  The Group
EEGREEEABERERNE The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
ERIE(EE) / BEMNENE recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the
AMAFEEEHMT ¢ movements during the year are as follows:

HiB

HRRE

TERAKE

Depreciation

allowances

Revaluation in excess of

of investment the related

properties depreciation Tax loss
Tr T Tr
$000 $000 $000

RETHIEEN Deferred tax arising from:

BERE :
W2012%481H At 1 April 2012 464 26,191 (253) 26,402
TEEEP kR Charged to profit or loss 326 7,334 218 7,878
A201343H318  At31 March 2013 790 33,525 (35) 34,280
R2013F4A1H At 1 April 2013 790 33,525 (35) 34,280
FERHP R Charged to profit or loss 248 7,129 35 7,412
A201493H831H At 31 March 2014 1,038 40,654 = 41,692
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B | K HEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 FrE% e 9 Income Tax (continued)
d) EERELEHEEENESE (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
(48) recognised: (Continued)
iy ARFA (i)  The Company
EEEESERERANELER The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
B(EE) /BEMHAKSBS M recognised in the balance sheet and the movements
NEFZEHOT during the year are as follows:

HBBARETEN
TERBE
Depreciation

allowances
in excess of

the related

depreciation
T
$000

RETHEEN Deferred tax arising from:

EEHIE
201254 A1R At 1 April 2012 913 (253) 660
bei=Enteckit] o Charged to profit or loss 33 218 251
M2013F3HF31H At 31 March 2013 946 (35) 911
2013F4 B 1H At 1 April 2013 946 (35) 911
Pei=Etankil| i Charged to profit or loss 34 35 69
HA201443H831H At 31 March 2014 980 = 980

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT




B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L 8% 5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 FiEM @ 9 Income Tax (continued)

(e) RERRIELBKIBEE : (e) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
BRWFEINFTHASEEE - AR In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(n),
ReEEEBNBB A AENEREZ the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
7575 o S B SRR ) T LA S 48 cumulative tax losses of $145,881,000 (2013: $145,881,000)
72 B % K Bk 145,881,000 L ( = & as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which
—=%F : 145,881,0007T) B Rt Hi % the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
EIEEREENELEHRIEELE - BIE jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire under
RITRLE » BERFEBTRERR current tax legislation.

Hy o
10 D EEERRESL SR 10 Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders
of the Company

NEERBRENGESSNBE—E27 The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the

AR R A B R R B 222,629,000 7T Company includes a profit of $222,629,000 (2013: $225,825,000)

(ZZ—=%F : 225,825,0007T )@l ° which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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B | K HEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11 RE 11 Dividends
(@ AFEEMARERBRRER (@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
B the Company attributable to the year
2014
Fx
$000

BEIREZFHERE Interim dividend declared and paid of

FhR0.217T $0.21 per share (2013: $0.17 per share)
(20134 : HPR0.177T) 99,694 80,704
REEBERGEHAR Final dividend proposed after the balance

BEiE oIk ARERR B sheet date of $0.23 per share

FH%0.237T (2013: $0.21 per share)

(20134 : HM%0.217T) 109,188 99,694

208,882 180,398

REEBBEREERREZD KX The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has
HREMATEEABERGEEBER not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.
RBEE-

b) BRE—HBBEEESQT (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
FERRE  WRAREE#HE of the Company attributable to the previous
EEZAHRE financial year, approved and paid during the

year
2014
P
$°000
BRLE—UBFE - Final dividend in respect of the previous financial
W AAREE I ERZH)  year, approved and paid during the year,
REARE B &A%0.217T of $0.21 per share (2013: $0.20 per share)
(20134 : &[%0.207T) 99,694 94,946
12 SREBF — EXREE 12 Earnings Per Share — Basic and Diluted
BMEXAXBINEZEEBREAFENRF The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
T @ B B & 15 & A 730,105,000 7T attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $730,105,000
—ZF— =% :1,425,698,0007T ) & B # (2013: $1,425,698,000) and 474,731,824 (2013: 474,731,824) shares
TTH R (D 474,731,824 % (=& — = ¢ in issue during the year. There were no potential dilutive shares in
474731824 ) 5t B - — T —=ZF R existence in 2013 and 2014.

RN EBE R EERYD

Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT




B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 BEEEE 13 Fixed Assets
@ A%H (@) The Group
REMHE HiM¥ - BERRE
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HER
HFEX
BEWE Hity s HittgE et k|
Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
AT EE : Cost or valuation:
PA2013%F4 418 At1 April 2013 12,731,899 101,824 31,866 133,690 12,865,589
EH R Exchange adjustments 33 - - - 33
1wz Additions 2,157 - 3,026 3,026 5,183
AR Cost adjustment (17,811) - = = (17,811)
BE Disposals - - (816) (816) (816)
DREBEAE Fair value adjustments 999,913 - - - 999,913
M201443H31H At 31 March 2014 13,716,191 101,824 34,076 135,900 13,852,091
& Representing:
[B%N Cost - 101,824 34,076 135,900 135,900
{HE—20145F Valuation — 2014 13,716,191 - - — 13,716,191
13,716,191 101,824 34,076 135,900 13,852,091
2iinE Accumulated depreciation:
HA2013%F4 18 At1 April 2013 - 17,801 14,302 32,103 32,103
AEEHE Charge for the year - 3,519 6,202 9,721 9,721
otz 2e 0| Written back on disposals = — (810) (810) (810)
P2014%3A31H At 31 March 2014 - 21,320 19,694 41,014 41,014
IREFE Net book value:
2014%3HA31H At 31 March 2014 13,716,191 80,504 14,382 94,886 13,811,077

Annual Report 2013-2014 &£ @




B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 BElEEE®m 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(@) A&EE@) (@ The Group (Continued)

BEYE Hy - BE REE
Investment

properties Other properties, plant and equipment

HER
FEX
EHERYES ERIRYES HEE

Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

ARG fHE - Cost or valuation:

P2012F4F1H At 1 April 2012 10,297,804 101,824 31,598 133,422 10,431,226
ER AR Exchange adjustments 537 - - - 537
wE Additions 8,842 — 980 980 9,822
RE Disposals - - (712) (712) (712)
RRBEAE Fair value adjustments 2,424,716 - - - 2,424,716
M2013F3A31H At 31 March 2013 12,731,899 101,824 31,866 138,690 12,865,589
Rk Representing:
(BN Cost — 101,824 31,866 133,690 133,690
HE—2013%F Valuation — 2013 12,731,899 - - — 12,731,899
12,731,899 101,824 31,866 138,690 12,865,589
2HIE - Accumulated depreciation:
R20124 518 At1Apri 2012 - 14,281 8,928 23,209 23,209
KEERE Charge for the year — 3,520 5,984 9,504 9,504
B & R o] Written back on disposals — - 610) (610) 610)
MA2013%F3A31H At 31 March 2013 — 17,801 14,302 32,108 32,103
RESE ! Net book value:
P2013%F3H31H At 31 March 2013 12,731,899 84,023 17,564 101,587 12,833,486

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT




B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 EEEE@) 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) AT (o) The Company

REME

Investment properties

g : Valuation:
72013/2012F481H At 1 April 2013/2012 262,000 209,600
NABERE Fair value adjustments 31,890 52,400
H3H31H At 31 March 293,890 262,000
(c) REVENAAEBEZ (c) Fair value measurement of investment
properties
RZE—MF=A=+—0 ' &E&Y At 31 March 2014, investment properties comprise ISQUARE,
¥(PREERES  FEIZEPLHE certain floors of Goodluck Industrial Centre, certain units of
FHEE FEIFNEMNE TEAM - Good Luck Industrial Building, a floor of Euro Trade Centre
BEESTR LN —ERELESH— and a floor of Yi An Plaza. Other properties comprise a floor
[E - ¥ BREMREBHEERE of ISQUARE, certain units of an industrial property, a unit of a
B8 —EIERENE TS commercial property, and two residential properties in Hong
iz ~ — R YN — (B8 R RE Kong.
Eaesty/E
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B | K HEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% %%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 EEEE @)

(©

5
b
§
M
=
]
=
]
mf
E'p_'

Io
i

TREJIAKENEERER
HERARKEREEMFENR
BEMERA(EE - ZFWED
BAR(EEVBREER)S
185%[ A4 B 1EAT 2 I PR RE R
“EARBEER AEES
AT EEIEMRANEA
BENABREREEMERME - {1t
MEE R EEFEREME
WAFEREAR, -

— FERME: RERS
—ERwmAERIEE
ARERTISAREREE
HBENRERAERE)
Kt BAREE

— BERME: BRE=
BRmABBIRES—
BRI EREAE®)
WARBEIR B AR T AT #]
EBAERFEAIAE
B - TABERAERE
KRR S BB B AE

— FBZEQMGE: RAEX
M TR ERBABERGE

AV

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT

13 Fixed Assets (Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

@

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties measured at the balance sheet
date on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at

the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs



B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 EEEE @) 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(c) WREVENRAABETZ@) (c) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

() 2RArREEEBRE (i)
REERARTLEB AR R
BEFENRENEREES
—ERERFE_ERGE - WHE

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
None of the Group’s and the Company’s investment
properties measured at fair value are categorised

into Level 1 and Level 2 valuations. The investment

BEF-ERMGHENREDE

properties which are categorised into Level 3 valuations

DHTEAT - are analysed as below:
rEE AT
The Group The Company
R20145 R20145
3H31H 3H31H
At 31 March At 31 March
2014 2014
F T
$°000 $°000
BEHEEFRTEBMNAREME Recurring fair value measurement
WRBEF ZEBAGERN Investment properties categorised
WEME into Level 3 valuations:
— R BBNEEDE — Commercial properties in
Hong Kong 13,327,300 -
— (R REREEE — Commercial properties in the PRC 47,161 -
— MR EBN T — Industrial properties in Hong Kong 341,730 293,890
13,716,191 293,890

REE-T—NF=A=1+—
BIEFE  TE—EBHRESE—
BB EERER MR
BE-BRNEEASEL - &
EENBRREAABEER
ZHEBREENEERERE
HEHBEREMER -

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into
or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy at the

balance sheet date in which they occur.
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B | K HEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 EEEE @)
() BREVENAIAEBETE@E

(i)

(i)

HERERF

RZZE-—mNE=RA=+—H -
REBEMAENREMEE
A — BB R MAERM — BR
HEETERMERART(EE
THEARBBRBAEMBEER
GEER  BHBEMGLZY
KM E NPT T
MERZ E8R)ETTER - EETD
ERMEZ TERER - &
2 C R ERE W AE S EF
HMFERE BETHENR

R AN

FZERAAEBEFENE
£t

AEBRBUEEREE B
MERFESBABARL - I
ZRIMELEXRNEREM
AE 1R B AR A M E
FEEN  NEBEREMENR
REE - EANTHERBA
E7IEMT -

13 Fixed Assets (continued)
Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

()

(i)

(il

Investment properties

Valuation process

The investment properties in Hong Kong and in the PRC
were revalued at 31 March 2014 by Vigers Appraisal And
Consulting Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers who have among their staff Fellows of The Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued, on a
market value basis. Management has discussion with
the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim

and annual reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

The fair value of investment properties was determined
using income capitalisation approach which capitalised
the net rental income of the properties and taking into
account the occupancy rate and reversionary income
potential of properties after the expiry of the current
leases. The significant unobservable inputs are set out

below:

Bt Ry EE

HE = EE
Range of Range of

capitalisation rate occupancy rate

URBEANEEME  Commercial properties in Hong Kong 2.89% — 5.00% 100%
MURAREREEYE  Commercial properties in the PRC 6.50% 100%
MUAEBNTEME  Industrial properties in Hong Kong 4.00% — 4.50% 48.6% — 100%

REMENAABEFERN
MR ELRER  BREXR(
PE AR L RAA

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT

The fair value measurement of investment properties
is positively correlated to the occupancy rate and

negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.



B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 EEEE @) 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(c) REVENRAABETZ@) (c) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)
iy FEZEHRAREBEF=ME (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
BHE) (Continued)
KEERNEZBHRAREBEL The movements during the year in the balance of these
SBEVEBIINT ¢ Level 3 fair value measurement are as follows:
rEH
The Group
NABEBH A ER NABEN
HEYE [SE2YES T
Commercial Commercial Industrial
properties properties properties
in Hong Kong in the PRC in Hong Kong
T Fr Fr
$’000 $°000 $°000
R2013%4 818 At 1 April 2013 12,385,900 44,649 301,350
JE AR Exchange adjustments — 33 —
®E Additions 2,157 — =
AR Cost adjustment (17,811) = =
NREEFE Fair value adjustments 957,054 2,479 40,380
201493 HA31H At31 March 2014 13,327,300 47,161 341,730

RAT

The Company

LREER

TEYZE

Industrial properties

in Hong Kong

Fr

$°000

M2013F4 /18 At 1 April 2013 262,000

NREERARE Fair value adjustments 31,890

20143 A31H At 31 March 2014 293,890
BEMEN AR BEARLLE Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
AENENREMEEER recognised in the line item “valuation gains on investment

properties” on the face of the consolidated income

MIEE PR - RFEREANER
@ EEE%%I’UF)?E%E@JFIW:] 28 or loss for the year arise from the properties held at the
BAREREERBREHR balance sheet date.

RENYE -

statement. All the valuation gains recognised in profit
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B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 EEEE @) 13 Fixed Assets (continued)

(d) HEEREFERNDHFOT :

(d)

The analysis of net book value of properties
is as follows:

PN
The Group The Company

B S In Hong Kong

— RHMAE — Long leases 101,942 98,863 = —

— REAEE — Medium-term leases 13,647,592 12,672,410 293,890 262,000

EEBTHN Outside Hong Kong

— REEE — Medium-term leases 47,161 44,649 = —
13,796,695 12,815,922 293,890 262,000

(6) HuEEBEEM LB BHERS
8

() REEBBEXRFEER  AEEURE

HERENPAZTREETFES
34,0007C( —E—=4 : 75,0007T) °

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT

Other assets comprise furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor

vehicles.

At the balance sheet date, the net book value of office
equipment held under finance leases of the Group was $34,000
(2013: $75,000).



B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 BElEEE®m

13 Fixed Assets (continued)

(g) REEBUKESHERLIREDME - & (g) The Group leases out investment properties under operating
LEESVAMREETF  LHEA leases. The leases run for an initial period of two to ten years,
MRBEDEHRBESR & Hjﬁﬁ'ﬁ 3 with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time
YA EFETE - HE_ZT—INF all terms are renegotiated. Contingent rentals recognised as
ZA=+—BIFERE %ZEPEEW income in the income statement during the year ended
Bl A8 sk A e A 14,697,000 7T 31 March 2014 were $14,697,000 (2013: $18,054,000).
(ZZ—=% : 18,054,0007T) °

NEEHERFREEMIEAFE All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
KREMETENMEYE  HeolE meet the definition of investment property are classified as
RILEYE - investment property.

AEEBRBENBRMLCEHEETR The total future minimum lease payments under non-
BREENERENZBEEOT cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:
REE b N
The Group The Company
2014
Fr
$°000

1FR Within 1 year 511,164 471,106 6,458 8,201

1F12B55F R After 1 year but within 5 years 400,509 636,061 6,923 12,936

5F 1% After 5 years 5,385 18,082 - —
917,058 1,126,149 13,381 21,137

(h) EEIKHF (h) Pledge of assets
REEBEBEREHER RITEXRR At the balance sheet date, fixed assets with carrying value of
LABR {8 A&13,304,416,000 T ( = = $13,304,416,000 (2013: $12,369,430,000) were pledged to
— =% : 12,369,430,000 7T ) K & & secure the bank loan (see note 22).

ﬁ@f’ﬁ%?ﬁﬁ(%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ?%) °
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B | K HEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 AMIB N B RS 14 Interest in Subsidiaries

PN
The Company

& (R AR) Investments, at cost
— JE LT, — Unlisted shares 14,363 14,363
— ®B LMk G, — Shares listed in Hong Kong 139,226 139,226
153,589 153,589
B OREE R Less: Impairment losses (14,363) (14,363)
139,226 139,226
JRE U B BB 1 B FE Amounts due from subsidiaries 108,212 124,772
R R(ERE Less: Impairment losses (24,360) (28,387)
223,078 235,611
R TE Market value of listed shares 3,424,949 3,725,676
JEHIBARZIBEREET o8 - W Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
BEEERH - ZRBEBEFTIER—FAYK have no fixed repayment terms. The balances are not expected to be
[ o recovered within one year.

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT




B ZME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 AMB D BHRER @) 14 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)
TRIEAEFERENBATE - BRE The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the
SFERESN - FTE A RGN AL R - Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

FriGREzR LB
Proportion of ownership interest
AL R A5EH mAAE  HNE
REHE BERTRARRAFE ERER 58 AERE
Place of Group’s held by
incorporation  Particulars of issued and effective the held by
Name of company and operation paid up capital holding Company subsidiary Principal activity
BB BEBR AR B 360,000,000 817 50.01%  46.41% 36% MEREIZELER
Associated International Hotels Hong Kong 360,000,000 shares Property investment
Limited and investment
holding
Sparkland Investments Limited B 2Rk AR 100% 100% - REBER
Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
BERERNA B 2R tH 100% - 100% FHENERREER
Harkam Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property and
investment holding
EA(ER)BRAT 0 1,600,000 &5 100% 100% - MERE
Metropolitan (International) Limited Hong Kong 1,600,000 shares Property investment
Associated International Resorts B 2BRAR 50.01% - 100% NER
Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Inactive
BEBROF EE 200,000 817 50.01% - 100% MERE
Diamond Town Limited Hong Kong 200,000 shares Property investment
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B | K HEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 AMB D BHREES @) 14 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)
TRY SR B E R E B R A R A A et The following tables list out the summarised financial information
BEMBE - ZRRRAEEE—HEEEX relating to Associated International Hotels Limited, the only subsidiary
FEIEARE R M B A R o IEIERAR R TG 18 of the Group which has material non-controlling interests. Total
B 549.99% o NR E25|HET S E RHEE ownership interest held by non-controlling interests was 49.99%. The
ZREERNRRFE#ETE KRS - summarised financial information presented below represents the

amounts before any inter-company elimination.

(a) XERE (@) Summarised results
2014
T
$°000
EH Turnover 606,262 518,878
NEF SR T Profit for the year 1,382,298 2,733,580
AEFEFEEMEEUBA Other comprehensive income for the year = (18,355)
KEEEEUALERE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,382,298 2,715,225
FEFE AR AR B R R Profit for the year allocated to
REEmF non-controlling interests 691,032 1,366,557
T IR AR R AR B Dividends to non-controlling interests (197,966) (179,969)
b) EEREERE (b) Summarised assets and liabilities
2014
Fx
$°000
IERBEE Non-current assets 13,469,346 12,526,082
MENVEE Current assets 480,088 433,376
13,949,434 12,959,458
mEAE Current liabilities (266,333) (469,665)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (241,770) (34,760)
(508,103) (504,425)
BEFE NET ASSETS 13,441,331 12,455,033

PR AR RS M B A R]A)  Non-controlling interests’ proportionate
BEFERELNE share of the subsidiary’s net assets 6,719,521 6,226,455

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT




B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 AMB D BHRER @) 14 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)
) ReERERE (¢) Summarised cash flows
2014
T
$°000
KEERFTSRIR G FEE Net cash generated from operating activities 456,182 384,234
WEEESMENIES FRE Net cash generated from investing activities 13,766 2,884
MEEHFTANIE S FRE Net cash used in financing activities (399,338) (362,317)
e EFHE Net cash flows 70,610 24,801
15 AtHEERES 15 Available-for-sale Equity Securities

rEE
The Group

B LTHESES Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,
(TE) at market value 9,391 7,103
16 FEUWERFX ~ RT & RFEAR 16 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments
REE NG|
The Group The Company
2014
Tt
$°000
EURBR RN Accounts receivable 20,756 23,691 517 618
T RIZEREE Less: Allowance for bad and
(Fg7E16(0)) doubtful debts (note 16(b)) (1,267) (1,267) (15) (15)
19,489 22,424 502 603
HEDSEEN Deposits and prepayments 6,962 9,983 229 224
26,451 32,407 731 827
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B | K HEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16 FEWEBRT: ~ sT& a7 16 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

(@) BRERDMT (@) Ageing analysis
REEABRGEEH  BIEERKER The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (net of allowance
P HekBARAHEKERE for bad and doubtful debts) which was included in accounts
Nk RIEREEE ) NBRR ST T : receivable, deposits and prepayments as of the balance sheet

date is as follows:

rEE AT
The Group The Company

K E Current 19,154 21,494 396 502
BER L E A Less than 1 month past due 269 644 43 70
#HA1 Z= 318 A 1 to 3 months past due 50 242 47 3
60 B A 31E A More than 3 months but
B2 A less than 12 months
past due 13 26 13 12
mEfERB121E A More than 12 months
past due 3 18 3 16
[yt Amounts past due 335 930 106 101
19,489 22,424 502 603
RPR—BEFAEEAE  ERER Debts are generally due on the 1st day of each month and 10
H—MA+RE+IHX  @HeEk to 14 days are allowed for settlement or else interest will be
FIE - REBEERREMFBIE charged. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
HRHIEE26(0) ° in note 26(a).

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT




B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16 FEUERE s RFaH @) 16 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

(b) FEUWERFURIE (b) Impairment of accounts receivable
RNEFEARBRSEEEZSHUT : The movement in the specific allowance for bad and doubtful

debts during the year is as follows:

rEH AT
The Group The Company

M2013/20124 At 1 April 2013/2012
4H1H 1,267 592 15 15
ERERRERE Impairment losses
recognised - 1,252 - -
B AT Uncollectible amounts
e written off - (577) = -
M3A31H At 31 March 1,267 1,267 15 15
RZZE—MF=A=+—1 ' ££E At 31 March 2014, the Group’s and the Company’s accounts
Ko 22 B 69 JE M AR SR P 2 B M Bl ) receivable of $1,267,000 (2013: $1,267,000) and $15,000
AR ER R 5 5 A1,267,0007T (2013: $15,000) respectively were individually determined to
(ZZT— =4 1,267,000 L) & be impaired. Consequently, specific allowance for bad and
15,0007 (= ZF— =4 : 15,0007T) ° doubtful debts of $1,267,000 (2013: $1,267,000) and $15,000
It EWERNRZRSEEE (2013: $15,000) respectively were recognised.

2R A1,267,000T( =T — =4 ¢
1,267,0007T) & 15,0000 ( — & —=
£ : 15,0007T) ©
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16 YR AT RFEAN R @)

(© RERERNEIRK
B BRI E R RRE R E B IER
REBEM AT -

16 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)
(c) Accounts receivable that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:

AEE AT
The Group The Company

R@EAs8 B RIE  Neither past due nor impaired 19,154 21,494 396 502
BHA D E A Less than 1 month past due 269 644 43 70
BmHEf1Z=3{E A 1 to 3 months past due 50 242 47 3
wHAEBS(E A 1B More than 3 months but
D128 A less than 12 months
past due 13 26 13 12

wHEABE1218 A More than 12 months

past due 3 18 S 16
335 930 106 101
19,489 22,424 502 603

REHHOL B R EN R KRFIE R
W2 AR LN EREmES -

ERMER A RENEUIRRRER
EAREEARFEBERN—REL
BEP - BIEERR  REAEESR

HREEERYEEANE - A
RS AP 28URE - FTAEZR
FRULEHERE LR

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history

of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.



B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17 2EBIRITER 17 Pledged Bank Deposits
RIE—FEER-_E—=F=A=+—8" At 31 March 2014 and 2013, bank deposits were pledged to a
IRITERE BIEIEFE - LUER—RIETHRIT designated bank to secure the bank loan (see note 22).

RERTTE R (2R E22) -

18 RERRESEEY 18 Cash and Cash Equivalents
EE LN
The Group The Company
2014
Fr
$°000
RITEEER Deposits with banks 199,841 128,607 19,925 15,049
BITFRRRE Cash at bank and in hand 35,548 30,743 4,033 3,253
235,389 159,350 23,958 18,302
19 HtENRKESTER 19 Other Payables and Accruals

rEE AT
The Group The Company

BERETEZMESTER Accruals and retention monies

R IERHREE R payable for redevelopment work 43,687 62,735 - —
HEE & Other payables and accruals
FEETE A 18,816 16,974 3,182 1,922
62,503 79,709 3,182 1,922
FrEEMEMA R EBETR —FNE All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be settled
i o within one year.
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20 2WET& 20 Deposits Received
FFEAEBERARRNERTSETRN All of the Group’s and the Company’s deposits received are expected
—F B - D R A %133,486,000 T to be settled within one year except for $133,486,000 (2013:
(Z=Z—=% :137,921,0007T) #1650,0007C $137,921,000) and $650,000 (2013: $1,686,000) respectively which
—ZEF—=4 :1,686,0007T) HWE] & FEF R are expected to be settled after more than one year.

—FRIBRIBRSN o

21 REBRSE€EME 21 Provision for Long Service Payments

The Group

Fr

$°000

7201354818 At 1 April 2013 1,573

TR S R [0 Provision written back for the year (53)

20143 H31H At 31 March 2014 1,520
RBEEBCRMIRD) - NEEARLL LT Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
AFFUEME TREBERR - EXLEER to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
TRAEH MR - BRNEBEIZEHET circumstances to employees who have completed at least five years
SROFHE KRBT - BERAEBRK of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on
FFEINAANEEEL MBI SRETE - 1% the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
B8 B BB EREEEAEAFIBERD by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
B - attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT
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(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22

TEF — BEF
RZE—NF=ZA=+—H " BRITERNE
AR -

Bank Loan — Secured
At 31 March 2014, the bank loan was repayable as follows:

ArEEH
The Group

1R Within 1 year - 200,000
1F1&B2F R After 1 year but within 2 years — —
2B B5FR After 2 years but within 5 years 200,000 -
200,000 200,000

REZE—=F=A=+—HBREENRTE The bank loan outstanding at 31 March 2013 amounting to

X /200,000,0007C * ZRBER T —=
F+ ARHREEE -

RZT—=F+A+tH  ARANHEA
7 — BB E AR A R B —EIRITE]

— 174 #£300,000,000 7T K 7 & & 15
Ho RBTRERA—DBEER-Z—
F=A=+—HRMAEA13,304,416,0007T
— T — = £ :12,369,430,000 7T ) H) &
TETEE(2MME130)ME—Ex
FEEMRRE THRITFER(2HME7)
ME-—ZHWZOEFEREM - B
—T-UFE=ZA=+—H  KEENERT
B 3% /200,000,000 7T (ZF — = F -
200,000,0007T) °

>

%M B A B RITRIE AR T B M B
ANE THRAEERBERIL X AHORHE]
TTREERA - WAKREAE —ERRENX
oo MM B AR RZE R - RIARR
HMEREECRINERRE - ARESEY
ERRAENABERE - R-_FT—NFR

T—=F=A=+—0 ZWBERFLE
EREMERREEARBINRE -

>

><7t°

$200,000,000 was repaid upon the expiry of the facilities in October
2013.

On 7 October 2013, the Company’s subsidiary, Associated
International Hotels Limited, entered into a new facility agreement
with a bank for banking facilities of up to $300,000,000. The banking
facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a first fixed legal
charge over certain fixed assets (see note 13(a)) with carrying value
of $13,304,416,000 as at 31 March 2014 (2013: $12,369,430,000)
and a first floating charge over certain bank deposits (see note 17). At
31 March 2014, the outstanding bank loan was $200,000,000
(2013: $200,000,000).

The subsidiary’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the subsidiary’s consolidated balance
sheet ratios and maintenance of capital at certain required levels. If
the subsidiary were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. As at 31 March 2014 and 20183,
none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been

breached.
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23 mEHEEERE 23 Obligations under Finance Leases
RZZE—NF=A=1+—0  AEEHE At 31 March 2014, the Group had obligations under finance leases
FAERENERHOT repayable as follows:

rEE
The Group

2014 2013
RIEHAE REHAE RIEMRE RIEMRE
NRBERE ARELRB PP BIEE N ErE T

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
Fr T T+t T
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
1R Within 1 year 34 34 41 41
15 18E2F R After 1 year but within 2 years 4 4 34 34
2R E5F N After 2 years but within 5 years = — 4 4
4 4 38 38
38 38 79 79

o BEFIESH  Less: Total future interest expense
BE — _

HEAENIRE Present value of lease obligations 38 79

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT




B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 BENBTHE 24 Government Lease Premiums Payable
RZZE—NF=A=+—0 ' ENBRFHE At 31 March 2014, the government lease premiums payable was
BYEFRERN ¢ repayable as follows:

ArEEH
The Group

1ERN(BIEEHEMERNZE  Within 1 year (amount included in

JEETERN) other payables and accruals) 52 50
1618 {E2F K After 1 year but within 2 years 54 52
2F 1B B5F A After 2 years but within 5 years 180 171
5% After 5 years 1,857 1,920

2,091 2,143

2,143 2,193
FEN T ER B RIR R B EREIAE TS Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a
FEEE(ZZE—=F : 5F )stE - fixed rate of 5% (2013: 5%) per annum on the outstanding balance.
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25 BEXRNf#E 25 Capital and Reserves
(a) FERAMILDHEE (@) Movements in components of equity
AEBIRE M S EHERE D & B
MEBREHOERE - EREZE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of

each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out

EREHR - NRRINFYE TR in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of
&R IR AR RSB D H B B B 5 H a0 the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
T between the beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
NG The Company

[ R E
Share Share
premium

REEH
Retained
earnings

capital
T T T
$000 $000 $000

R201254R18H Balance at 1 April 2012

o3 118,683 3,147 340,003 461,833
AEERF R Profit for the year and total

FEBARE comprehensive income - - 205,825 225,825
BRE-BBEE Dividends approved in

RS respect of the previous

financial year — — (94,946) (94,946)

BRXRBREE Dividends declared in respect

FRARE of the current financial year - - (80,704) (80,704)
M2013F3H31HK  Balance at 31 March 2013

2013548181 and 1 April 2013

533 118,683 3,147 390,178 512,008
AEEEF R Profit for the year and total

FHRALE comprehensive income - - 222,629 222,629
BRLE—UHEE Dividends approved in

RERRE respect of the previous

financial year - - (99,694) (99,694)

M2014%3 43R Transition to no-par value

BEZEZ regime on 3 March 2014

HEHE 25(0) 3,147 (3,147) - =
BAXRBREE Dividends declared in respect

SREIRE of the current financial year - - (99,694) (99,694)
R2014%3A31H#  Balance at 31 March 2014

] 121,830 - 413,419 535,249

Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT
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25 BEXRKfFE@

(b)

[EEN (b)

EE ¢ (RE1) Authorised: (Note 1)

GIREE0.257T2  Shares of $0.25 each

25 Capital and Reserves (continued)

Share capital

2014 2013
K& E Pgnr 2!
Number of T Number of

shares $°000 shares

i (7E2) (Note 2) — — 600,000,000 150,000
ERTRAR : Issued and fully paid:
f&fn Shares 474,731,824 118,683 474,731,824 118,683
R2014F3H3H Transition to no-par

BEEEZEME value regime on

#lfE (5E3) 3 March 2014 (Note 3) = 3,147 _ _
M3A318 At 31 March 474,731,824 121,830 474,731,824 118,683

2

(1) FEFEBECARGY)(E6228) T F
BEEERAOES - FHEOIN=-Z
—E=A=HRRAERR -

@  RBEFNEBCRRUED N (F622F)
#1356k BT —MNFE=A=H
B ARAHNRNTIEEEAERE
B - BEEIFBTHEEITRGOE
EEAREMNEEERSATE -

@  REHNFE(RFHED)(F622F)
MR 7R MBI IS R
ZZ-NF=RA=H " BRHEEERN
ERIET 8 - BRAARRBBRAR

—#5 -

Btn 558 A B IR R 5K A A
B WAIEARARAG FBRHE—R
B —F - HRAQRAHFGBE
E - FBEROBEFEREER -

Notes:

(1) Under the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
which commenced operation on 3 March 2014, the concept of
authorised share capital no longer exists.

2) In accordance with section 135 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Company’s shares no
longer have a par or nominal value with effect from 3 March
2014. There is no impact on the number of shares in issue or
the relative entitlement of any of the members as a result of this
transition.

) In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section
37 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), on 3 March 2014, any amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account has become part of the
Company’s share capital.

The holders of shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with

regard to the Company’s residual assets.
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25 BARKR#Ew@

(c) fREEHHEEMAZ
E-ZT-NE=ZF=H 2/ B
BERAE A B AT & BCR BHEHD
(E32% ) FA8BIKFTIRE  IRIEFEY
BACRENERIN(E622F ) R11E
STIEFTE M RE G - RZ=F—Y
F=A=8 " REEENEFNER
BAHK AR RRBREAN—BH (2
BBt zE25(b) c BT —MNE=A
ZAR BRANCEAZINFHES
CARMEDIN(5E622F ) FTHRIR -

EfRFEBERENEFEERREE
MEBHBBRIEMYEEGHREE -
ZBECERRBERES - MELR
EAEMER  EAHBNERRR
SHEMREEBAREDLN o tHE
A IRAY ©

AEBECRIIVERKE - WIEH T
1(q)FTE AR B EIMEE B TS RE
FIEEMER ZR ST BURMEE -

AREBEEREEENEEREREE
AR AA L EREESFNAAE
ERAEHFE - WIZME1(d) AT
& BRI

EARRHEE-—RNBARETET
ERIEER T EERBIRMEAEE
1 5 BT /88 2 BN AT 20 I B 0% 35 0
HOBRER -

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X &#hE 5 R 2 7

25 Capital and Reserves (continued)

()

Nature and purpose of reserves

Prior to 3 March 2014, the application of the share premium
account was governed by sections 48B of the predecessor
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). In accordance
with the transitional provisions set out in section 37 of Schedule
11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
on 3 March 2014, any amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account has become part of the Company’s
share capital (see note 25(b)). The use of share capital as from
3 March 2014 is governed by the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622).

The revaluation reserve represents hotel properties revaluation
surpluses and other properties revaluation surplus recognised
in prior years. The hotel has been redeveloped into iISQUARE.
Upon the retirement or disposal of the properties, any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to

retained earnings. The reserve is non-distributable.

The exchange reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign operations in note 1(g).

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of available-for-sale equity securities held at the
balance sheet date and is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies in note 1(d).

The capital reserve represents the net increase in the Group’s
share of the undistributable reserve in a subsidiary pursuant
to the issuance of various classes of preference shares by a

subsidiary to preference shareholders.
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25 BEXRKfFE@

(d)

A D IR
R-IB—ME=A=+—0 - BEF
BB AR ARG (F622%F ) F65
BRETEN A HD IR T A REZRRR
B % 1% 4858 5 149,798,000 T (=&
— =4 : 158,447,0007T) - BE &
REERBREE BERRD KA
BEEFR02BTT(ZE—=F : )
0.2170) + & #£109,188,000 (=&
— =4 1 99,694,0007T) (FizE11) »

BURBNEERBEREE R RAME

RRAE-
EXEE
AEBEEREANTRANRREAR
SEEKCENRE N KMFEE LA
Y MET E SRRk P AR TR RO IR 7% (B

BARABERABGREN T
HEERERRRERE®R I REAM
MR RA R o

AEETFE BRI MEREERER
BERET AR R A ERUKTEAFR
Re MR R B ERE - BEEREEARR
HREBEZMRERG TG - WERE
%&/@? BN AR EREE  BE
—NERZE-=F=ZA=1+—
Ellt¢§ RS ERBEREERT

AN SR B AR R R 7 B AR AR

& ZREHEABBLERERE S
MEBBRRERHEERERE - stk
mE - ~"EBERAETEFBELEAR
RITERLERUNGEEERER
ﬁfﬂ'ﬁiﬁ\, 188 c RZE—UF
ZA=1T—8 FXEENEXER
HE R 4%(_i—: 1.6%) °

miks T_W\&EE%E_ fET:IE/T/\
%43E 279,969,000 L (—Z & — =4 :
221,900,0007T) °

25 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(d)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as
calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), was $149,798,000 (2013:
$158,447,000). After the balance sheet date the Directors
proposed a final dividend of $0.23 per share (2013: $0.21 per
share), amounting to $109,188,000 (2013: $99,694,000) (note
11). This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the

balance sheet date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by leasing properties and
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2014
and 2013.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet. As at 31 March 2014,
the Group’s gearing ratio was 1.4% (2013: 1.6%) with bank
deposits and cash exceeding total bank loan of $279,969,000
(2013: $221,900,000).
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BHEREER D AEE

AEEEELREHEETLIRER R
B MEMEKRER - AEETEHEE
ETRERREMEENERERRER

BRAREEPAERNER - ARAREEAL
ZEEIE ARSI BEEREIZBRMETM
fﬁ LAAT ©

@@ FERkE
AEEMEERREZREEKEE
o BHEECEBRREERR  WAT
ETESRFTEASHEERRE -

LM 5 - HRArA BRI
BB -T2BEEENTF  A5HE
SELEREER G - B ERPR
HEPBEERIMRAENTLENE
RIEERE ) T EEREPEEER
HAEEPRLMEMNKERE - R
R—RESAERIE  ERERA
—RBTRETHEX - BHSEEHN
8 AEESHEEENBER T H Y
RFBEHEAREERTE - REEK
REFR 2 (2HH20) 1E R R USER
HEE M -

AEBELTESEREERARETNE
Mo DEFEPTRHEM G - REB A
XHEERRELRABEREBERTE
BeREEMNETE(SHRREE
) o AEBEYEREHAIBAKER
ARRAEEERBEEFER o

EEAEEEERERMEL LS
BRABHEELRE  HR
13216 -

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X &#hE 5 R 2 7

26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also

exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@ Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts are generally due on the 1st day of
each month and 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or
else interest will be charged. Legal action will be taken against
past due debtors whenever the situation is appropriate. The
Group obtains deposits from customers (see note 20) as

collateral over accounts receivable.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of
any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance. The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to

credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

out in note 16.
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26 BIEEMESER A AEE G

(b)

RBEEER
AEBENREZTEHRERERMA
HWRBEZHR  UEBEBETEN
R WRERF TR SHERE - [
FRERTTAGRIRHE R AMEER - U
mRESNRERNRBESTK

TERFAVAREERANRBZITES
MEEREERBREHEANHGRE
WEERIE - ZERBERAORTH
RanE(BRAEHMNEIIZNE
EREREEANERNX(MEF
B ERF SN RAKBMAR
AR XA BEIMmSIH :

26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities

to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:
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26 BIEREREERAABE@ 26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (Continued)
b) REBELEK @) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
KEE The Group

2014
BEAR  ANANR 15/, ek BB
REAE REREAR  BRERNR BHR2E {BHREF BB5E

Balance Total More than More than

sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5years
iz iz iz Tx Tx i
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HiofERZ R EHER Other payables and accruals 62,503 62,528 62,528 - - =
BlETS Deposits received 178,808 178,808 45,322 97,382 34,093 2,011
BEfERE Obligations under finance leases 3 3 34 4 - -
RTER—BER  Bankloan — secured 200,000 205,084 2017 2,023 201,044 -

ENBRE Government lease premiums

payable 2,001 3,495 - 159 41 2,859
443,440 449,953 109,901 99,568 235,614 4,870

BERE 13 1EM,
*EAE  Re) FERAE
Balance More than More than
sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5years 5years
T T T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
EM MR ER Other payables and accruals 79,709 79,734 79,734 - - -
EliETe Deposits received 169,708 169,708 31,787 41,178 93,688 3,085
BAMEAE Obligations under finance leases 79 79 4 34 4 -
FOEF—EHAE  Bankloan — secured 200,000 201,085 201,085 - - -
ERTE Government lease premiums
payable 2,143 3,604 - 159 47 3018
451,639 454,240 312,627 41,371 94,169 6,073

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT
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26 FIEEREER A EE @) 26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (Continued)

(b) REVEEERE &) (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
FiN/NE The Company
2014
BEBER ELERiE) 1513 BEIE farehia
BEE  RERELE BERAN BARE BARSE
Balance Total More than More than
sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5years
T Tn Tr T Tr
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HiofERZREHER  Other payables and accruals 3,182 3,182 3,182 - -
BT Deposits received 1,929 1,929 1,279 = 650
5111 5111 4,461 - 650

BERRR
EE
Balance Total More than More than
sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carmying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5years
S S T T T
$000 $/000 $1000 $/000 $000
EfERZRESER  Other payables and accruals 1922 1922 1922 - -
Bl Deposits received 1,899 1,899 213 1,036 650
3,821 3821 2,135 1,036 650
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26 FIEEREER A EE @ 26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (Continued)

() FZEEpks (c) Interest rate risk
AREENFZXREBREITERBETE The Group’s interest rate risk primarily arises from bank loan.
Ko FEBMIRITERE AR EEBET The bank loan borrowed at variable rates expose the Group to
RenEfEEak AEEEEEE cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as
TR R a0 ()Pt o monitored by management is set out in (i) below.
()  FIEHR () Interest rate profile
TRFAINEEABRAEER The following table details the interest rate profile of the
AEBMERFIRBR Group’s borrowings at the balance sheet date:

AEE
The Group

2014

T HEFIE

Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate
% %

EEMER Fixed rate borrowings:

REEFAEAIE  Obligations under

finance leases - 38 — 79
FERTEUATHIIE  Government lease
premiums payable 5.00 2,143 5.00 2,193
2,181 2,272
FEMER Variable rate borrowings:
$RITER —  Bankloan — secured
BHEH 1.01 200,000 0.96 200,000
[ER €t Total borrowings 202,181 202,272

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT




B8 EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BB EREE
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SR AR EE®

= @b ()

(i) BRESW
R-ZT—mE=A=+—8§ -
st SRR R L7 25
—T =4 05)KE it
FiE MR BEEEERHTE

REEBRBE &R R RE R
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FEAEREEBEREERR
BRERTETAMEEMNER
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BB T (FREER) 5
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WFE R EIELME - 518
AMREZZE—=FHERAMHE
AEHELT o

R H 5 5 B R
& E L EEREEROINEER -
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values continued)

(©

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 March 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 25 (2013: 25) basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately $418,000 (2013:
$418,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact
on the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2013.

Currency risk
The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as
substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated in

Hong Kong dollars.

Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note 1(d)).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Listed investments held in the
available-for-sale equity investments portfolio have been chosen
based on their long term growth potential and are monitored

regularly for performance against expectation.
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B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% %%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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WRADE) - (AERIEHIRAE -
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2 AEEMRZEFN SN
A 1,784,000C (=T — = F -
2,060,0007T) - EEAMEZ -F
—=FARMEEETT

RREETTE
RAnBETENSREEREE
$%‘E< REEBEREEARKEEE
LA ENERTAAREE - ZF
SRIAEE R AKEBNBREE
BIDEASSKEI A B EL 2 IFTRER
ZEARBEER - NEEDRIEN
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HHNAARBETEAEEAZEMNEEE
HIRR ©
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values continued)

©)

Equity price risk (Continued)

Based on the sensitivity analysis performed at 31 March 2014,
it is estimated that an increase/decrease of 19% (2013: 29%)
in the market value of the Group’s listed investments, with all
other variables held constant, would not affect the Group’s
profit unless there are impairments. The Group’s total equity
would increase/decrease by $1,784,000 (2013: $2,060,000).

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013.

Fair value measurement

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

The Group’s financial instruments measured at fair value at
the balance sheet date on a recurring basis are categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique as defined in note 13(c)()).

At 31 March 2014, the only financial instruments of the Group
carried at fair value were available-for-sale equity securities of
$9,391,000 (2013: $7,103,000) listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong (see note 15). These instruments fall into Level 1

(2013: Level 1) of the fair value hierarchy as described above.

All other financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March 2014

and 2013.
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(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27

28

29

EERNKER
REBILZBEBCGRBIMEATERFEEDIE
BT - AIREBEEAEREIDEANESR
SERBIM AT EI([RESETE]) - %4
BT EIRAEMMZ A BN AT MK
RIRETEl - BIBATERFTE - BEXMES
HAEZRIEBRBABR5% AT B EH #
;o BE AMEEA R LR A250007T °
BRog bl RSN - AREE R AR E T R B 48
7 A 825,000 T FI5% VEH B BRI R : B
B =ES A A L3500 AR - [itE
TEH B RS RN EEEEER - fm
FTEVELA R - BIER &5 Ti6M
WIERT - PME B FE RN F i H B e 5 5
BREER - BERITHERESNEFTR
MEEREMERRENEINADEREE
MIBE R R o

RAFERN - LMWK HKRBIEREERE
EEMAERAE5000T(ZE—=
)  R-_T—E=A=+—H K&£H
WA HEAME LR ER(ZE—=4F
1,0007T) °

RZE-—MF=A=+—HARKENTXARE
MR ANBEEAAENT

EEIES)

Contracted for

27

28

Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$25,000. In addition to the mandatory contribution, the Group makes
voluntary contribution at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income in excess of $25,000, subject to a maximum monthly income
of $35,000. Mandatory contributions to the plan vest immediately
while voluntary contributions to the plan vest at the time the
employees reach the retirement range, subject to certain conditions.
The staff costs in respect of staff employed by DTZ for building and
property management of iISQUARE are reflected in the Group’s
income statement.

During the year, forfeited contributions of $5,000 (2013: Nil) was
utilised to reduce the contributions payable for the year. No unutilised
forfeited contributions (2013: $1,000) had yet to be applied by the
Group at 31 March 2014.

Commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2014 not provided for
in the financial statements were as follows:

AEE
The Group

4,950 1,064

EESRRMRAEER

EXZgRA ARER-_ZT-OF=A
=t HNEERSRRRRRERT AEE
BRI RIEER DA © WARRER
A HARNFERE

29

Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling

Party

At 31 March 2014, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong. This entity
does not produce financial statements available for public use.
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Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation

30 Possible Impact of Amendments,
New Standards and Interpretations Issued
But Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended
31 March 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and a new standard which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2014 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the following

which may be relevant to the Group.

EUT g z#
RN E T HEEN
Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on or after

2014F1A1H
1 January 2014

— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

(BEFBREL)DEIR &M TA

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BEBEFEIAERM
To be announced
by the HKICPA

AEE B IEAERHE G LHE RT M R R TERT 17
RERMBEMELENTE - B RIALNGE
R BRANE LB AT E R I A LR A B 75
BRBREBAZENAEETAK -

AN - IRIBF B BCR AMED ) (F622%F)
35814 - FOMBEAIRE BT IMWAT
EARRR-ZT—NFE= =B 2 &RABN
BEMRFEEER(AIARER T —F
MA—BFBNTERERE) o AEE T
EFHETHICA BRI S OEB T SHE IR IE
ARG E IS RERMEANTE - 58
Rl ALEM AR = FTE £ BT T Al a8
K BREBFERGAVBERENERS
FIFNH R

@ Tian Teck Land Limited X{&E#EHBR QT

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”, of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation from the Company’s first financial year commencing after
3 March 2014 (i.e. the Company’s financial year which began on
1 April 2014) in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance. The
Group is in the process of making an assessment of the expected
impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application
of Part 9. So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be
significant and will primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure

of information in the consolidated financial statements.



LFEHBHE
Five Year Financial Summary
(8% 37R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

e Results
2014
Tt
$°000
[=E 2 Turnover
— BEgE — Continuing operation 128,053 382,630 461,980 527,502 617,159
— R (FE) — Discontinued operation (Note) 17,246 17,010 — — =
145,299 399,640 461,980 527,502 617,159
REYELESRER Profit from operations
Hy &R R after valuation changes
in investment properties 2,805,772 1,067,099 570,303 2,864,156 1,508,170
& AR Finance costs (4,325) (9,175) (2,464) (2,257) (3,048)
R %4 A2 A Profit before taxation 2,801,447 1,057,924 567,839 2,861,899 1,505,122
Frg®t Income tax (8,747) (8,223) (102,105) (69,644) (83,985)
REFELEZ Profit for the year from
REERR continuing operation 2,792,700 1,049,701 465,734 2,792,255 1,421,137
RELIERE 2 Profit for the year from
REERA (FF) discontinued operation (Note) 5,366 202,494 — — =
REFEBR Profit for the year 2,798,066 1,252,195 465,734 2,792,255 1,421,137
T AL HEMR : Attributable to:
NAIERM R Equity shareholder of
the Company 1,413,252 641,078 250,901 1,425,698 730,105
FEIERR AR R o Non-controlling interests 1,384,814 611,117 214,833 1,366,557 691,032
2,798,066 1,252,195 465,734 2,792,255 1,421,137
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HEERBEME Five Year Financial Summary
(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EEREE Assets and Liabilities
2014
T
$000
EEEE Fixed assets 9,360,182 10,176,725 10,408,017 12,833,486 13,811,077
HiBEHEE Other investments in securities/
A EEES available-for-sale equity
securities 2,970 5,199 5,637 7,103 9,391
IRIEFRIEE B Deferred tax assets 8,074 242 — — =
nBEE(BE) Net current assets/(liabilities)
FE 601,804 979,777 179,475 (19,926) 233,592
9,973,080 11,161,943 10,593,029 12,820,663 14,054,060
RITER — A Bank loan - secured (1,105,000)  (1,000,000) (200,000) — (200,000)
FETER AT HO(E Government lease premiums
payable (2,284) (2,240) 2,193) (2,143) (2,001)
BhE M ERIE Obligations under finance leases (114) (120) (79) 38) ()
FERIES & Deferred tax liabilities (819) (1,001) (26,402) (34,280) (41,692)
EEFRE NET ASSETS 8,864,813 10,158,582 10,364,355 12,784,202 13,810,273
f&A : EE Share capital: nominal value 118,683 118,683 118,683 118,683 =
HitykE BN Other statutory capital reserves 3,147 3,147 3,147 3,147 —

A% 2 H At A E B AN Share capital and other statutory
i capital reserves 121,830 121,830 121,830 121,830 121,830
EM R Other reserves 4408172 5,071,157 5193482  6,435917 6,968,922

4,530,002 5,192,987 5,315,312 6,557,747 7,090,752

FEER R R ER Non-controlling interests 4,334,811 4,965,595 5,049,043 6,226,455 6,719,521
TR TOTAL EQUITY 8,864,813 10,158,582 10,364,355 12,784,202 13,810,273
Fr AEERR - ZE——F=ZA _HEREEMNRERA Note: The Group completed the disposal of properties located in Malaysia on 2 March
LY ZMETFEESR S 1 - EER 2011, mainly comprising the golf course land, the golf resort which was situated
SRANE LI FSRREEBRN  EE M RFE on the golf course land, the condominium land and the bungalow land. The

Erih e RERHER  AEBNSBAFELE R Group’s golf and recreational club operation ceased thereafter.
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